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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the President
and Board of Trustees
Village of Chatham, Ilinois

Report on the Financial Statemenis

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Village of Chatham, Ilinois, as
of and for the year ended April 30, 2015, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the Village’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.,

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with anditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement,

An audit includes performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the Village’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Village’s internal control. Accordingly, we exptess no such opinion, An
audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.




Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the Village of Chatham, Illinois, as of April 30, 2015, and the respective changes
in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s
discussion and analysis and other required supplementary information listed in the table of contents be presented
to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part
of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or
historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge
we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express
an opinion or provide any assurance,

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village of Chatham, Iliinois’ basic financial statements. The combining and individual nonmajor
fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic
financial statements,

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements are the responsibility of management and were
derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial
statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic
financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the
basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with aunditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole,

The accompanying financial information listed as “Additional Schedules” in the table of contents has not been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on that information.




That audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the Village of Chatham, Illinois’ financial statements as a whole. The Comparative Statement of Net
Position and Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position for the Electric Fund
and the Comparative Balance Sheet and Comparative Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in
Fund Balance for the TIF District, related to the 2014 financial statements are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of these financial statements. Such information is the responsibility
of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to
prepare the 2014 financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of those financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling
such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements
or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Eotea) Dudgrnton ¥ Ggilen

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, Illinois

Qctober 23, 2015




Village of Chatham, Hlinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As the management of the Village of Chatham, Illinois (the Village), we offer readers of the Village’s financial statements this
narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the Village for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015.

Financial Highlights

¢ The assets of the Village of Chatham exceeded liabilities at April 30, 2015 by $32,306,152. Of
this amount $1,137,627 is unrestricted.

* The Village’s net position increased by $2,138,245 during the year compared to last year’s net
position,

»  Atthe end of the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance for the general fund was
$1,076,299 or 26.47% of total general fund expenditures.

USING THE FINANCIAL SECTION OF THIS COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statements” focus is on both the Village as a whole (government-wide) and on the major individual funds. Both
perspectives (government-wide and major fund) allow the user to address relevant questions, broaden a basis for compatison
(year to year or government to government) and enhance the Village’s accountability.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The government-wide {inancial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Village of Chatham’s
finances, in a manner similar to a private-sector business.

The Statement of Net Position presents information on all of the Village’s assets and liabilities, with the difference between
the two reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether
the financial position of the Village is improving or deteriorating,

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the Village’s net position changed during the most recent fiscal
year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event giving rise to the change occurs, regardless of
the timing of related cash flows, Thus, revenues and expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will anly
result in cash flows in future fiscal periods (e.g., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation and sick leave).

Both of the government-wide financial statements distinguish functions of the Village of Chatham that are principally
supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmental activities) from other functions that are intended to recover
all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities
of the Village include general government, cemetery, culture and recreation, public safety, public works and transportation,
and economic development. The business-type activities of the Village include electric, water and sewer systems.

The government-wide financial statements can be found on pages 13-15 of this report.

Fund Financial Statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that are used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific
activities or objectives. The Village, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate

compliance with finance-related legal requirements. Ail of the funds of the Village can be divided into three categories:
governmental, proprietary and fiduciary funds.




Village of Chatham, Yllinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, unlike the government-wide financial statements,
governmental fund financial statements focus on near-term inflows and outflows of spendable resources as well as on balances
of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such information may be useful in evaluating a government’s
near-term financing requirements.

Because the focus of the governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to
compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in
the government wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the
government’s near-term financing decisions, Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statements
of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between
governmental funds and governmental activities.

The Village maintains 9 individual government funds. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance
sheet and in the governmental funds statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance for the General Fund
and the TIF Fund, both of which are considered to be “major” funds. Data from the other 7 governmental funds is provided in
the form of combining statements elsewhere in this report.

The Village adopts an annual appropriated budget for its General Fund. A budgetary comparison statement has been provided
for the General Fund to demonstrate budget compliance.

The governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 16-19 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The Village maintains only the enterprise type of proprietary fund. Enterprise funds are used to report
the same functions presented as business type activities in the governmenti-wide financial statements. The Village uses
enterprise funds to account for its electric and water and sewer system.

Proprietaty funds provide the same type of information as the government-wide financial statements, only in more detail. The
proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the electric distribution operation and the water and
sewer operations, both of which are considered to be major funds of the Village of Chatham.

The proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 20-22 of this report.

Fiduciary Funds. Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the government.
Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide financial statements because the resources of those funds are not
available to support the Village’s own programs. The accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for
proprictary funds. The Village maintains one fiduciary fund the Police Pension Fund.

The fiduciary fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-24 of this report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide
and fond financial statements, The notes to the financial statements can be found on pages 25-56 of the report.




Village of Chatham, Illinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Other Information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents certain required supplementary
information concerning the Village’s progress in funding its obligation to provide benefits to its employees. In addition,
budget versus actual information for the General Fund and TIF District Fund is presented. Required supplementary
information can be found on pages 57-67 of this report.

The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with non-major governmental funds is presented immediately
following the required supplementary information on pensions. Combining and individual fund statements and schedules can
be found on pages 68-73 of this report.

Financial Analysis of the Village as a Whole
Table 1
Statement of Financial Position

Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government

2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

Current and Other Assets $ 4342965 § 5,110,497  $ 2,913,616 $ 2,981,522 $ 7,256,581 $ 8,092,019
Capital Assets 15,647.415 13,091,356 19,549,729 18.877.822 35,197,144 31,969,178
Total Assets 19,990,380 18,201,853 22,463,345 21,859,344 42,453,725 40,061,197
Current Liabilities 784,206 769,026 1,401,797 1,319,782 2,186,003 2,088,808
Non-current Liabilities 1,646,045 1,586,462 4,494,582 4,547,829 6,141,027 6,134,291
Total Liabilities 2,430,251 2,355,488 5,896,779 5.867.611 8,327,030 8,223,099
Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,699,125 1,627,500 121,418 42,691 1,820,543 1.670,191
Total Liabilities and Deferred

Inflows of Resources 4,128,376 3.982.988 6.018,197 5,910,302 10,147,573 9,893,290
Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets

Net of Debt 15,360,931 12,582,113 14,776,580 14,069,999 30,137,511 26,652,112

Restricted 660,783 1,858,516 370,231 162,047 1,031,014 2,020,563

Unrestricted ( __160.710) ( _ 221,764) 1.298,337 1,716,996 1,137,627 1,495,232
Total Net Position $15.861,004 $14.218,865 $16.445,148 515,949,042 $32,306.152  $30,167.907

The Village’s combined net position increased from $30,167,907 to $32,306,152 during 2015, Net position in the
governmental funds increased $1,642,139, and net position related to business-type activities increased $496,106.

At April 30, 2015 unrestricted net position related to government activities and business activities were ($160,710) and
$1,298,337 respectively. The deficit in unrestricted net position does not mean that the Village does not have resources
available to pay its bills; rather it is the result of having long-term commitments that are greater than currently available
resources.

For more detailed information, see the Statement of Net Position on pages 13-14.




REVENUES
Program Revenues:
Charges for Services
Operating Grants and
Contributions
Capital Grants and
Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes
Other

Total Revenues

EXPENSES

General Government
Cemetery

Cultore and Recreation
Public Safety

Public Works

Economic Development
Electric

Water and Sewer

Interest on Long-Term Debt

Total Expenses
Change in Net Position

Net Position, Beginning
of the Year

Net Position, End
of the Year

Village of Chatham, [linois

MANAGEMENT’S PISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Table 2
Changes in Net Position
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total Primary Government
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014

$ 924211 § 912,968 $14,530,879 $13,656,967 $15455,000  $14,569,935
354,771 399,660 - - 354,771 399,660
1,171,228 831,171 589,496 55,529 1,760,724 886,700
1,621,673 1,556,217 - - 1,621,673 1,556,217
2,590,697 2,523,218 - - 2,590,697 2,523,218
26,623 73,038 2.977 4,293 29,600 77331
_6.689.203 6,296,272 15,123,352 13,716,789 21,812,555 20,013,061
667,302 682,431 - - 667,302 682,431
46,854 45,007 - - 46,854 45,007
530,004 504,938 - - 530,004 504,938
2,376,929 2,394,534 - - 2,376,929 2,394,534
1,364,512 1,380,482 - - 1,364,512 1,380,482
49,969 45,429 - - 49,969 45,429

- - 9,096,569 9,084,473 9,096,569 9,084,473

- - 5,530,677 6,013,821 5,530,677 6,013,821

11.494 14,222 - - 11,494 14,222
5,047,064 5,067,043 14,627,246 15.098,294 19.674.310 20,165,337
1,642,139 1,229,229 496,106 ( 1,381,505) 2,138,245 ( 152,276)
14,218,865 12,989,636 15,949,042 17,330,547 30,167,907 30,320,183
$15.861,004 $14,218,865 $16.445.148 $15,949.042 $32,306,152  $30,167,907




Village of Chatham, Illinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continned)

REVENUES

Property Taxes 7%

Other Taxes 11,8% [

! -7 | Other .2%

Capital Grants and
Contributions 8%

Charges for Services

Operating Grants and 71%
Contributions 2%

For the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015, revenues totaled $22 million. The Village’s largest revenue source is from charges
for services, which consist of charges from the electric, water and sewer system as well as franchise fees, business permit fees
and administrative utility fees. Capital grants and contributions include contributions of streets, storm sewers, water main and
sanitary sewers from new developments within the Village of Chatham. Other taxes include sales tax, income tax,
telecommunications tax, local use tax, road and bridge taxes and video gaming taxes.

Charges for services are up 6% from $14.6 million in fiscal year 2014 to $15.5 million in fiscal year 2015. Service charges for
the electric system and water and sewer system are up $874 thousand over fiscal year 2014, which represents a 6% increase
over the previous year. This is due to steady growth of new residents as well as rate increases passed for the Village’s electric,
water and sewer services.




Village of Chatham, Illinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EXPENSES

General Government Cemetery
3% | 25%

Interest

Culture and
Recreation
3%

Public Safety

Water and Sewer 12%
28.25%
Public Works
1%
Economic
Pevelopment
0,
Electric 25%

46.25%

The Village of Chatham’s expenses totaled $20 million in 2015. The largest portion of these expenses is for the electric
system which represents 46.25% followed by expenses for the water and sewer systems at 28.25%. These expenses reflect the
cost of providing electric, water and sewer services to the Village of Chatham’s residents. These expenses decreased
$471,048 over last vear, which represents a 3% decrease. The prior year expense includes costs associated with the legal
settlement in the Water and Sewer Fund.

Public safety expenses relates to the operation of the Village’s Police Department and are the largest expense component of
the governmental activity expenses. Public works expenses are costs associated with maintaining the Village’s streets.
Culture and recreation expenses include expenses to maintain the Village’s parks as well as the summer recreation program,

FINANCIAL ANALYSIS OF THE VILLAGE’S FUNDS

The Village of Chatham had a change in governmental net position of $1,642,139 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015. Of
the net change $1,171,228 is due to capital contributions. Capital contributions consist of assets received from infrastructure
received from developers. The Village’s business-type activities had an increase in net position of $496,106. The Electric
Fund had a positive change in net position of $331,409 and the Water and Sewer Fund had a positive change in net position of
$164,697. The positive net change in position in the Water and Sewer Fund is due to $589,496 received in developer
contribitions of infrastructure of water main and sanitary sewer.




Village of Chatham, Hlinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Table 3

General Fund Budgetary Highlights for the
Fiscal Year Ended April 30, 2015
With Comparative Actual Totals for the Year Ended April 30, 2014

Original Amended Actual Actual
Budget Budget 2015 2014
REVENUES
Taxes $3,753,500 $3,753,500 $3,613,562 $3,486,648
Licenses and Permits 803,350 803,350 785,353 762,538
Other 54,500 54,500 264,123 79.015
Total Revenues 4,611,350 4,611,350 4,663.038 4,328.201
EXPENDITURES AND TRANSFERS
Expenditures ( 4,379,556)  ( 4,379,556)  ( 4,066,870) ( 3,965,732)
Transfers Out (_196,000) ( _326.000) ( _326,000) ( _246,000)
Total Expenditures and Transfers ( 4,575,556) ( 4,705.556) ( 4.392.870) ( 4.211,732)
Change in Fund Balance $_ 35794 ($_94,206) $ 270,168 $_116,469

Revenues of the Village are budgeted by source prior to the adoption of the Village’s annual appropriation ordinance. The
Village adopts an annual appropriation ordinance outlining expenditures by operational line item. The original appropriation
was amended and budgeted expenditures increased by $130,000 to reflect loan proceeds received and transferred to the
Capital Projects Fund for construction of the Street Department shop building, Budgets for administration, culture and
recreation, public safety and public works and transportation remained the same.

The General Fund Revenues received were more than the amount estimated by $51,688 and expenditures were $312,686 less

than the amended budget.

10




Village of Chatham, Illinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Capital Assets

The following schedule reflects the Village’s capital asset balances as of April 30, 2015.

Capital Assets
Table 4
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
Land, not Depreciated $ 372,000 $ 372,000 $ 318734 $ 318734 3 690,734 $ 690,734
Construction in Progress 2,063,081 225,905 248,226 “ 2,311,307 225,905
Improvements 767,861 716,019 68,970 ' 08,970 836,831 784,989
Buildings 627,423 627,423 804,117 804,117 1,431,540 1,431,540
Vehicles 797,224 873,469 1,234,921 1,163,042 2,032,145 2,036,511
Equipment 900,035 851,630 1,095,131 1,017,514 1,995,166 1,869,144
Infrastructure 15,021,248 13,850,020 - - 15,021,248 13,850,020
Utility Plant - - 33,074,198 31,767,542 33,074,198 31,767,542
Less:
Accumulated Depreciation (.4.901457) ( _4425,110) ( 17.294,568) ( 16,262.097) ( 22,196.025) ( 20,687.207)

Total $15.647415  $13,091,356 $19,549,729 $i8,877.822 $35,197,144  $31,969.178

At year-end the Village’s investment in capital assets for governmental activities was $15,647,415, an increase of $2,556,059
over April 30, 2014. At year-end the Village’s investment in capital assets for business-type activities was $19,549,729, an
increase of $671,907 over April 30, 2014.

Major capital asset events during FY 2015 included the following:

Governmental Activities

Constraction in Progress $1,837,176
Infrastructure additions $1,171,228
Business-type Activities

Construction in Progress $ 248,226
Utility Plant additions $1,306,656

Additional information on the Village’s capital assets can be found in Note 4 on pages 33-36.

Long-Term Debt

As of April 30, 2015, the Village had a total of $3,812,000 of bonded indebtedness outstanding. Of this amount, $196,000
comprises debt backed by the full faith and credit of the government. $3,616,000 of the debt represents bonds and debt

certificates that are secured by specified revenue sources (i.e., revenue and alternative source revenue bonds). The Village
also had $1,467,077 of debt consisting of notes payable and capital feases,
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Long-Term Debt — Continued

During fiscal year 2015, the Village financed the costs to construct a shop building for the Water and Street Department, This
debt is split between the Governmental and Business-Type Activities. An aerial truck for the Electric Department and a
backhoe for the Water and Sewer Department were financed though capital lease transactions.

Table 5
Bonded and Similar Indebtedness
Governmental Activities Business-Type Activities Total
2015 2014 2015 2014 2015 2014
General Obligation Bonds $ 74000 $ 104,000 5 - $ - $ 7,000 $ 104,000
TIF Alternate Source

Revenue Bonds 125,000 245,000 - - 125,000 245,000
Electric Alternate Source .

Revenue Bonds - - 3,571,000 3,805,000 3,571,000 3,805,000
Debt Certificates - - 45,000 85,000 45,000 85,000
Notes Payable 219,442 - 1,015,101 910,191 1,234,543 910,191
Capital Leases 90.486 160,243 142,048 7.632 232.534 167,875
Total $_505928 $_ 509243 $4,773,149 $ 4,807,823 $5279.077  $.5317,066

Additional information on the Village’s long-term debt can be found in Note 6 on pages 40-47.
Economic Factors

The Village’s combined governmental fund’s net position increased from 2014 to 2015 due to capital contributions received
for infrastructure. The Village’s General Fund revenues also exceeded expenditures and transfers out by $270,168. The
Village’s Proprietary Funds have shown declines in operating income and change in net position. The Electric Fund had an
operating income for the fiscal year 2015 of $453,374 and an increase in net position of $331,409. The Water and Sewer
Fund incurred an operating loss of $411,091 and a positive change in net position of $164,697 in fiscal year 2015 due to
contributions of infrastructure received from developers of $589,496.

CONTACTING THE VILLAGE’S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, customers, investors and creditors with a general overview of the
Village’s financial status. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report or requests for additional
financial information should be addressed to Sherry Dierking, Treasurer and Chief Fiscal Officer, Village of Chatham, 116 E.
Mulberry St., Chatham, Illinois 62629.
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April 30, 2015
Governmental  Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equIVAIBNES. ..o e rssssssassestsmsnms $ 1,882,922 $ 889,348 $ 2,772,270
Restricted acCOUS = CASN ..ot e srse s reass e saesrassenas 195,120 370,231 565,351
Receivables, net
ACCOUNLS oottt eress e s e e s ersas e s sare s s anasts - 1,178,883 1,178,883
KBS v s sbest st sn e ra s e e b obe s aba st an s e se se e asamasaasans 2,120,665 - 2,120,665
OHBEE o erver e reersrerecse e ses e s s sas e sss e sbess s sas e s srs et sanas 61,012 - 61,012
TAVERLOTY vttt bsssnss st asesevensn s - 475,154 475,154
Due from other SOVEIMIMENES .......cvveereriverereerierese e ssissssesenssressssesenssnes 83,246 - 83,246
Total CULTENE ASSELS c.vverieerereirieterererererbersessresssrsssssasssssesessnessesans 4,342,965 2.913.616 7.256,581
CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets, not being depreciated .....iviviiic s 2,435,081 566,960 3,002,041
Property and equiPment ... .vvceevmieeinisressersie e s nesesessesseseensssssessossene 18,113,791 36,277,337 54,391,128
Less: accumulated depreciation ... iiveervieimsevssserssssssissessessssesens (_4901.457)  ( 17.294.568)  ( 22.196.025)
Total Capital ASSELS....cocirirenisrenisiiss et reerasseserareassanens 15,647,415 19,549,729 35,197,144
TOTAL ASSETS ... siessssssssssesensmsisenissassos $19,990,380 $22,463,345 $42.453,725
{Continued)

Village of Chatham, Hlinois
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Village of Chatham, Hllinois

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30,2015

Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources. and Net Position
CURRENT LIABILITIES

AccOunts PAYABIE ..o e e
Accrued PAYTOH.. .. e
Payroll taxes and related Habilities.........veeiminienescnnne e,
Accrued compensated absences payable ...,
CUSOMEr dEPOSILS useriuiecrmminamis it as st s b seresesresarassesas
Accrued.nterest PAYADIE.......oceiinirrrr s
Other payables......ciiiiiiiin e
G.0O. bonds payable — CUITENL.......covvivverrv v reree s sessesssssesss
G.0. bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) payable —current......o.uivnne,
T.LF. G.O. bonds payable — QUITEDE....ccocvvve v
Debt certificates payable — CUTTENE.......c.oeinvicsssrmeesnsssssssnssseneens
NOtes payable — CUITENL....co oo s seseees e sessssessens
Capital lease payable — CUITENE ... scsnesesens

Total Current LIabilities .....viieiiisinscsnsneesesesesen:

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
Net OPEB 0blIZatIon .o v v nersssesesssssssesssnssssasenss
G.O. bonids PAYADIE ... v s s
G.0. bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) payable.......vvererevvensrenens
INOLES PAYADIE ... vserecariecr ettt sa st st srsnasnasenss
Capital 1ease PAyaDIE. ....cc.cceie e re s s sesbes
Net pension oblIZAtON .o sesnisensans

Total noncurrent liabilities. ... s

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unearned reventie — Property taXES ... v ireremnrsnessessiseinssssssnsasinns
Unearned 1revenues — OTHET. ...vvioreierieersrrsrsresessessesserssresiassasssssassossines

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital ASSELS v.vvviiiiiiesnisieiee e
Restricted for maintenance of ToadWaYS ...c.veivecreervan e sneesrereseereesiens
Restricted for CEOMELEIY CATE ..o
Restricted for debt SErVICe. .
Restricted for economic development ..........coeeeeiveveieneerecresrivsesiersinns
UNEESITICIE coveveensersrrerressss s nis s sas s s ssarassestssrrenseessnssonsressssassensnes

Governmenial  Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 100,561 $ 430,176 $ 530,737
107,180 71,418 178,598
14,081 - 14,081
331,378 190,836 522,214
- 173,700 173,700
1,308 62,626 64,434
- 14,939 14,939
35,000 - 35,000
- 231,000 231,000
125,000 - 125,000
- 45,000 45,000
21,459 137,850 159,309
47.739 44,252 91.991
784,206 1.401,797 2,186,003
505,841 179,935 685,776
36,000 - 36,000
- 3,340,000 3,340,000
197,983 877,251 1,075,234
42,745 97,796 140,541
863.476 - 863.476
1,646,045 4,494,982 6.141.027
1,699,125 - 1,699,125
- 121418 121418
1,699,125 121418 1,820,543
4,129,376 6.018.197 10,147,573
15,360,931 14,776,580 30,137,511
198,834 - 198,834
342,055 - 342,055
115,854 370,231 486,085
4,040 - 4,040
( 160,710} 1,298,337 1.137.627
$15.861,004 $16,445,148 $32.306.152

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Village of Chatham, Illinois

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
April 30,2015
TIF Aggregaie
Assets General District Nonmajor Total
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents............ocvvevvcrervsecreresenns $ 731,970 $ - $1,150,952 $1,882,922
Restricted accounts - cash.......c.coiveereenrcivevicrsvernns 67,267 30,445 97,408 195,120
Taxes receivable .. 1,518,343 575,575 26,747 2,120,665
Other receivables.....oovvcveevirerse e 46,942 - 14,070 61,012
Due from other funds ... vveevemeervee e cnrceeeene 3,325 - “ 3,325
Dug from other ZOVErnments v eiiren o 83,246 - - 83.246
TOTAL ASSETS ..o resaaesasenn $2,451,093 $_606,020 $1,289.177 $4,346,290
Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of Resources and Fund Balances
LIABILITIES
Accouttls PayabIE .. & 65076 $ 26,405 $ 9,08 $ 100,561
Accrued payToll....oc e 105,226 - 1,954 167,180
Payroll tax and related liabilities.......ccovincreecsnnees 13,675 - 406 14,081
Due t0 other fUNdS .o innesseeiesisiseseesins - - 3,325 3325
Total Liabilities.....ververireimenrenrercnsressnrenne e 183.977 26.403 14,765 225,147
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue — property taxes........ooecveeens 1,123,550 575,575 - 1,699,125
Total Liabilities and Deferred Inflows of Resources 1,307,527 601,980 14,763 1,924 272
FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:
Corpus of permanent fund.......c.cciiiiniiiin - - 342,055 342,055
Restricted for:
Dbt SEIVICE ovvvreresrisri ittt erscevenssessreeensensne 18,446 - 97,408 115,854
PUblic WOrKS vevvveve i vsesamresrmevsaresrsessresrsenns - - 198,834 198,834
Economic development.........ccovvvarvvirerermrrarer - 4,040 - 4,040
Unrestricted:
Committed:
Veteran’s memorial brick.......ceciicinnnennn - - 11,225 11,225
YA Waste.ouivirereeisinereireeressosnereesenerseseres - - 225,139 225,139
Public Safety .o ireinrrssrerse e snseesenies 45,015 - 573 406,188
PUBLC WOIKS. vt ereereernereereens - - 34,743 34,743
L0 121 o PO TR - - 68,867 68,867
ParKS eienrecrerirrccrerinen v 3,206 - - 3,206
Assigned:
Capital projects......coevnveermenrnnenenennnns - - 295,568 295,568
Unassighed. .. iensnssesnessssnsens 1,076,299 - - 1,076,299
Total Fund Balances.........ccmmeveevnveciviannens 1,143,566 4,040 1274412 2422018
TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS
OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES..... $2,451,093 $_ 606,020 $1,289,177 $4,346,290

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
RECONCILIATION OF FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

TO THE GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

April 30,2015

Fund Balances of GOvernmental FUNAS ........ccoiuicimriesiosiissieemenss oo ssssss e esessesessssssssssssseres
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because;

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmMental fUnds ..........vovvveevoireereeeeeeeeeeceses s s senns

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.

Compensated abSences PAYADLE........evriiciieiecieie ettt es e e r s e nbaneee
ACCIUEd INErEst PAYADIE ......ceevecieieeiesceese ettt ne s ress e e et e et e
G.O. bonds payable, CUITNL ... e s ies 1 seserae s sestesseesese s sesssesesseras
T.LF. G.O. bond payable, CUITENL.......cc.ccvceicsivimineneessissresessessasssesionsanssssessassensessssssssssessssassns
NOTE PAYADIE, CUITENL.....uiuiiiricr ettt e e s b bsas e eese e rae e e

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 2,422,018

15,647,415

331,378)
1,808)
35,000)
125,000)
21,459)
47,739)
36,000)

(197,983
( 863,476)
(505,841
( __42.745)

$15.861,004
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Village of Chatham, Iltinois
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

TIE Aggregate
General District Nonmajor Total
REVENUES
Property tXeS. . eeerereseerensrerensemesnsiesesssnsrsnssevesrens $1,073,195 $ 548478 $ - $1,621,673
Replacetnent TaXeS. ... v vrrurerssimessesesssssesisesnssaenns 2,744 - - 2,744
Road and bridge taxes......coecvivverivriesrvereenssinssneisosees 26,284 - - 26,284
SAlES LAKES ooviirieiniicirisiicticist e teesreveessessareseessossasaes 915,887 - - 915,887
Local USE 1AX cvcvreerrercininiesssinsvierssssarrnrsressrensresessens 221,456 - - 221,456
MOtOr fUel fAXES ..vvvrereeer it srenbesbomrane - - 341,987 341,987
TelecommuniCations X ...ueveieorcnsesieresiesresssssrennne 201,318 - 50,330 251,648
Video gaming taX ..ceermreerrsennereresssesreeresseneenennens 46,430 - - 46,430
Licenses, permits, fees, fines, and service charges .. 770,394 - 153,818 924,212
INVESMENt INCOME uvvvrsvveerersinsissiseieseensiressressseseernes 2,175 1,303 2,570 6,048
OHREE e e s s b 34,123 - - 34,123
Shared INCOME fAKES. v erse s seen 1,126,248 - - 1,126,248
Federal Zrants.........coovvvvrnrersenneenenescneinsnsmeses 12,784 - - 12,784
Total REVEIUES ..oeveverire e vee e see e s snns 4.433,038 549,781 548,705 5.531,524
EXPENDITURES
Current operations:
General GOVEIMMENE .....ocivcinrreornrercerreseersnns 651,407 - - 651,407
CEMELEIY vt sssseesrseenes 45,559 - 441 46,000
Culture and recreation ........ccovveervecnererennns 477410 - 1,829 479,239
Public safety ....cvvevcercinierecrrcesesreniirevenirenns 2,316,770 - 26,799 2,343,569
Public works/transportation.....c.c.ueeereisensenns 524,971 - 455,661 980,632
Economic development.........oceeinvcennerecinescrans - 49,969 - 49,969
Capital QUHAY ...ooverecorrerersrssnnsinsserenresrrsrerssssserasesenns - - 1,889,055 1,889,055
Debt service:
17511 | OO 43,575 - 120,000 163,575
HBEIESE ..ot 7.178 - 5.400 12,578
Total Expenditires .....ccooeevreecereeecsrinrcnens 4,066,870 49969 2.499.185 6.616.024
EXCESS (DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER
EXPENDITURES BEFORE OTHER
FINANCING SOURCES (USES) ccoourisreerenersensres 366,168 499,812 ( 1.950.480) ( 1.084.500)
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
TIANSTEES Mluviverecivorersrerenseersrmrereresreresssreseressssonssensans - - 2,043,107 2,043,107
TEANSEES OULy.errvisiesserrererersarssnrensimaeirseessrenes ( 326,000) { L717,107) - ( 2,043,107
Loan proceeds ... nrnresinneensievssesesnsesine 230,000 - - 230,000
Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) ............. ( __96.000) ( L717.107) 2,043,107 230,000
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ......cccnveecrereares 270,168 ( 1,217,295) 92,627 (  854,500)
FUND BALANCE —MAY 1,2014 ..o 8§73.398 1,221,335 1,181,785 3.276.518
FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015 ... cccirmmerennsnres 81,143,566 $_ 4,040 $1.274412 $2,422,018

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,




Village of Chatham, Illinois
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES,
EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES TO THE
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES IN THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Net change in fund balances — gOVErnmEntal fUnds ............co.coovivereeereireerenessosseesiessessssesssssssssssssossoss ($ 854,500}
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reported as depreciation expense. The following is the amount by which
capital outlays exceeded depreciation in the current year:

CAPIAL OULLAYS. 1. crrvererrerceieeiesreniesstt st emeesees s seser st sas s s bese e seeees s eoe e eee s e 1,937,423
DIEPIECIALION ...vvtviti vttt sersar st ssr e s sse s s erasansassesssesssessasseseses (  539,044)

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e., sales, trade-ins,
donations, and disposals) is to increase/decrease net position:

Capital asset donations - IDOT .......cccccriviennmnieesnieeceascosesesseseesssssessasssseesessesssoss -
Capital asset donations — DEVEIOPELS .....v.cvcerrerriereressessersssessessessssressssetsssoesseseses e, 1,171,228
Loss on disposal Of Capital ASSELS.......uvierisivieimessrese e iersesssesssessesssessessessssseseessssssons ( 13,548)

The increase in OPEB obligation resulting from annual required contributions in excess of the
contributions do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore, is not reported
a8 eXPenditures in the fUNAS.........ciieriii e et s esensentess st se e eesosteeseeeeseeseesas (  107,050)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of cutrent financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds:

Acerued cOMPENSAEd BDSENCES ....v.cuivveeriierveererenseesesereesesesessssesess e s sseseeseseesess e eeseo 8,491
Net pension OBHZALON ...t s s seressress s ssssssssesessessessess 34,723

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g. bonds, loans, leases) provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current
financial resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net
position. Also, governmental funds report the effective of premiums, discounts and similar items
when debt is first issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. In the statement of activities, interest is accrued on outstanding bonds, whereas in the
governmental funds an interest expenditure is reported when due. The following is the detail
of the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items:

Repayment of G.O. bonds payable.........ciiiiiicecresesissesssseseesesessessssssssssssnos 33,000
Repayment of T.LF. G.O. bond payable ..........cccc.ecreiinnrniinensesieessnseseresesessessessesssssseses 120,000
Repayment of capital [6a5e PAYADIC.........ccccvcrimieiiniceisiseeseeresceeseeseesesssessssssss s s ssssensn 69,757
Repayment of OES PAYADIC..........evviercriecerestens st see s s eesees s s st ssessessesses s sssens 10,559
LOAN PrOCEEAS .v.envievviritinisic ettt rasssss s s sessas st b s csses e ess e sasens st s st s s s nseens { 230,000)
ACCIUC INMRIESE PAYADIE. .......orvereesreissis st tres e tessensae s esssesessesessasssss oo saeess 1,100
Change in net position of governmental ACtHVItES .........cvvevrervrerrereenrssresieseseesseessessssrsoss $_1,642.139

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Village of Chatham, 1llinois

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS
April 30, 2015

Assets
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents e b b ene e
RESITICIEA L8Nt vvssrecnnseesisstsssssssressssssssssesesemssesssessessssssesssessee e e e seessenas
Accounts receivable.......
Due from other funds....
INVENLOLY woovvoseicicmeccs s ersesnnens e

CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital assets, not being depreciated
Propetty and equipment ...
Less: accumulated depreciation ..........cvveeereerserseresseens

CaPItAl ASSELS, N8, uuuirsareeersssrsetsieseerssnssessesssssesssssomssssenessesmeseeseseesesssssss.

Liabilities and Net Position

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable ...

Accrued payroll....

Accrued compensated absences payable

Due to other funds ......coovenninsrisvsnnnne

Unearned income .......

Customer deposits.......

Accrued interest payable

Other payables....

Current maturmes of long term debt

G.0. Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) payable ..o ovsnsrronns
Debt certificates

Loan payable..............

Capital lease payable.....oovevriiiiirncevrnnn,

Total current liabilities

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES
Net OPEB 0BHZAHOM.c...vvvvvsisiieeceerestenesiesns s iosssseeseeressessesseseessessssesssseseeees
G.0. Bonds (Altemate Revenue Source) payable
Loans payable..... .
Capital lease payable

Total long-term HabilIes. .. c.vesreceeemrersrreesssessesesssssioesenessssssssessssssmsesees

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted....ooovirivenan.. rerrereieanns e

TOTAL NET POSITION

‘The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Waterworks
and

Electric Sewerage Total
$ 806,638 $ 82710 $ 889,348
349,191 21,040 370,231
742,516 436,367 1,178,883
358,828 - 358,828
426,322 48,832 475,154
2.683.495 388,949 3272444
279,734 287,226 566,960
18,539,894 17,737,443 36,277,337
( _1.567.516) ( _9.727.053) { _17.294,568)
11,252,112 8,297,617 19,549,729
13,935.607 8.886,566 22.822.173
52,218 377,958 430,176
41,832 29,586 71,418
136,716 54,120 190,836
- 358,828 358,828
74,965 46,453 121,418
117,400 56,300 173,700
60,617 2,009 62,626
8,751 6,188 14,939
231,000 - 231,000
45,000 - 45,000
- 137,850 137,850
21,720 22,532 44252
790,219 1,091,824 1,882,043
104,149 75,786 179,935
3,340,000 - 3,340,000
- 877,251 877,251
73.256 24,540 97.796
3.517405 977571 4,494,982
4,307,624 2.069.401 6.377.025
7,541,136 7,235,444 14,776,580
349,191 21,040 370,231
1,737,656 (439319 1,208,337
$.9.627,983 $.6.817,165 $16,445,148
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Village of Chatham, llinois
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND

CHANGES IN NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Waterworks
and
Electric Sewerage Total
OPERATING REVENUES
UISEI CHAIEES ..otuieuercr e eerrmes s ssss st sssrassesseassssssssrensese s s e sssssst s s s b s e senenenne $ 9,311,838 $ 5,017,835 $14,320,673
OhEr INCOMIE . ov1eueeseeeccrerrsessasrssrsessasesssssssssessessssareseste et s sebs e E b4 b s seserrrmennen 113,408 87.798 201,206
Total OPErating FEVEIIIES. .o..uvureerreresesrereresesrssmssssssissassssse s ssssssessessans 9,425,246 5.105.633 14,530.879
OPERATING EXPENSES
EleCtriCity PUICHASES L.vvuvrvrirvrnesssssssssissisecrereessesesssoressessassasassssssmesssnsnsesssssasans 6,307,891 - 6,307,891
‘Water purchases/sewer expenses .... - 3,720,134 3,720,134
Distribution and customer service........... 2,120,501 1,265,091 3,385,592
DEPreEciBtion .uvmmemmsreenssnennrsssissscssesseisesessesersenes 543.480 531,499 1.074.979
Total OPerating SXPENSES...civviriinriiiirintisietieereeerrrsssserssssssssssssesssreseessseens 8.971.872 5.516.724 14,488,596
OPERATING INCOME (LOSS).. v sssn s ssssssssscmeeseserersens 453,374 (_ 411.091) 42,283
NONOPERATING REVENUE (EXPENSES)
Contribution by developers - 589,496 589,496
Investment income............. 2,732 245 2,977
INEELESE (EXPRISE) vuvvvariinriecarereriniasiaseriesssissessssiesenssansanesesensssssssssessssssstnsssmnsrenne ( __124.697) ( 13.953) ( __138.650)
Total nonoperating revenues (exﬁcnscs) .................................................... ( __121.965) 575,788 453,823
CHANGE IN NET POSITION.....ccoviimriernsiirsisssssssssssssssiimeneessessrsensssenes 331,409 164,697 496,106
NET POSITION —MAY 1, 2014 o oorerrsarnrsnsessssesenmsers s ssssssesessssssssssesesmsssenes 9,296,574 6,652 468 15,949,042
NET POSITION — APRIL 30, 2015 " $.9,627,983 $.6,817,165 $16,445,148

The accompanying notes are an integrat part of these financial statements.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Waterworks
and
Electric Sewerage

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RECEIPLS FIOM CUSIOINIETS couvevveeecvvs i ies st sssssssssstetsemeseeereseeees s rrerrssssssessessess $ 9,418,240 $ 5,069,557
Payments to suppliers ( 7.538,275) { 3,760,650)
Payments to employees ( _1.170,720) ( __830,839)

Total

$14,487,797
{ 11,298,925)
( _2,001.559)

Net cash from operating activities oo e 709,245 478,068 1,187,313
CASH FLOWS FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loan proceeds .....ovevvnrrarnns e 111,087 297,617 408,704
Purchases of capital ASSe1S....cvcuirereeerrresreriesrosisnsssenaens (  504,070) (  653,320) { 1,157,390)
Principal paid on capital debt (  290111) { 153.267) { 443.378)
Interest paid on capital debt. ( __100.102) { 13,719) ( __113.821)
Net cash (used for) capital and related financing activities ....v..ovverorerenns ( __783.196) ( __522.689) ( _1,305.885)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
TNLErest FECRIVEL vuuivueiiunecvctninictiiie bt eer s s s enasnasns 2,732 245 2.977
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS woovvvuressssssssactrronns ( 71,219) ( 44,376) ( 115,595)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING .....ooveeveeeveeersereeeseeseseras o 1.227.048 148,126 1,375.174
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, ENDING .cocvvurvsmmsssmsessrssssrsenesessssses - $.1,155,829 $__103,750 $_1,259,579
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS CONSISTS OF THE FOLLOWING:
Cash and cash eqUIVALEIHS. ...t sseaasen $ 806,038 $ 82710 889,348
Restricted a0C0UNS — CASN.....iiiiviiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeresseseessseessesessseesssssssssssensesesessans $ 349191 $ 21,040 $ 370,231
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH
FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Operating INCOME (LOSS) .v.viverrireecinnanineriinissnnses s s ssessessesssssssssssssssens $ 453374 ¢ 411,091 § 42283
Adjustment to reconcile income (loss) to net cash from operating activities:
DePreciafion ..o ...cvirsimsrecesesersecssnnisssstise e eeerears e rmss st sesesseasssasess 543,480 531,499 1,074,979
{Increase) decrease in assets:
Accounts receivable ( 7,006) ( 36,076) { 43,082)
Due from other funds 358,828) - { 358.3828)
Inventories ., 29,773 ( 34,380} ( 4,607)
(Decrease) increase in lzabxhtlcs
ACCOUNES PAYADIE. ...cvuerrerrerrrreesess s essesessssssanse e s s sasssssas ( 23,918) 44,332 20,414
Unearned revenue 50,096 28,631 78,727
Accrued payroll ..., 3,230 3,997 7,227
Uncompensated absences.... 1,962 ( 37,501) ( 35,539)
Net OPEB obligation............ 15,246 28,387 43,633
Dueto other funds..... - 358,828 358,828
Deposits payable...... 1,300 700 2,000
Other PAYADIES ..v..vveceeveern et sstes s eeersrss s ssssssssesessas 336 742 1,278
Net cash from operating activities.....o v, $__709.245 $__478,068 $.1,187.313

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements,
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
POLICE PENSION TRUST FUND
April 30, 2015

ASSETS

Investments
MUEBAL FUNAS ..ot e b bbb bbb b ersen e nens
Non-negotiable certificates 0f dEPOSIT.. it s bens
Negotiable certificates O AEPOSIt .....cvccrriiiniirrri e irrseseses e sess e sssess b b bosesestese oo
Municipal and corporate bonds ............cveereiminninininsinr i e onsens
Government MOITZALE POOL.....vooieicccecii i e as et st seeseseesesrensestasessssesssans
AZENCY SOCUITHES .vvvvvivriiriesieisiiesiescsieites e st rea s st n s e ees e st b st s rnres
ULS. TIEASUIIES. cu.veveeriuriierenresreessse e essae s s s benrsbrssses b bbb ems et ne s e smnsessessensensensansenenenes

LIABILITIES
ACCOUNTS PAYADIE.....oiviviirrirereniemrinisesre et sa et saessess s o benses s ast et sersasnesemsnstesensessesaraseen

NET POSITION HELD IN TRUST FOR PENSION BENEFITS
(A schedule of funding progress is presented on PAge 53} ....cvuieersirenicremiiresis s ssorersrseeassas

The accompanying notes ate an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 310,013

11,562

2,618,344
1,452,399
201,132
556,968
224,692
263,016
105,374
51,532

2.473.457

5,795.032

1,237

$5,793,795
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Village of Chatham, Ilinois
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
POLICE PENSION TRUST FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer (Property tAXES) ..ot iesiessessesissssiesssssssssessssssssssesssesssessasssesassassasses
EIMPIOYEE ..ottt sttt rsas s et emas s sba et ees

TOtAl CONTEIDULIONS ....cvrevreririorie et et ree e eeeeeeeessee e ene e err s et eseaseseseereseenssaeessesteseaeseseene
Investment income

Net appreciation in fair value of INVESIMENIS .....cvvvorrrriceiresreniieces st oo rssess s
TEEIESL...sveeeesrisss vt s es st e sases e s e b e bt

DEDUCTIONS
Benefits and refunds

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 341,102
107,716

448,818
62,786
239,780
302,566

751,384

211,558
248

11,003

222,809

528,575

5,265,220

$5,793,795
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Village of Chatham, Hlinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The basic financial statements of the Village of Chatham, Illinois (the "Village") have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as applied to government units (hereinafter referred
to as generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP)). The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
accepled standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more
significant of the village’s accounting policies are described below.

A. —Repotting Entity

The Village is a body corporate and politic established under Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS). The Village is considered to
be a primary government as defined by GASB Statement No. 39, since it is legally separate and fiscally independent.

In evalvating how to define the reporting entity, management has considered all potential component units. The decision to
include a component unit in the reporting entity is based upon the significance of its operational or financial relationship with
the primary government.

The Village has determined that no other outside entity meets the above criteria and, therefore, no other entity has been
included as a component unit in the Village’s financial statements.

B. —Fund Accounting

The accounts of the Village are organized on the basis of funds, each of which is considered a separate accounting entity. The
operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets deferred
outflow of resources, liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, fund equity, revenues, and expenditures or expenses as
appropriate. Government resources are atlocated to and accounted for in individual funds based upon the purposes for which
they are to be spent and the means by which spending activities are controlled.

C. -- Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of activities) report information
on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the primary government. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been
removed from these statements. Governmental activities are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues and are
reported separate from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment is offset by
program revenues, Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program
revenues include: (1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services, or
privileges provided by a given function or segment and (2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the
operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary funds. Major individual
funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.
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Village of Chatham, [llinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

D. — Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Preseniation

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economiic resources measurement focus and the acerual basis
of'accounting, as are the proprietary and fiduciary fund financial statements. Revenues are recorded when earned and
expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are
recognized as revenues in the year for which they are intendeéd to finance. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue
as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met. In determining when to recognize
intergovernmental revenue (grants and shared revenue), the legal and contractual requirements of the individual programs are
used as guidance. There are, however, essentially two bases for this revenue recognition. In one, monies are virtually
unrestricted as to the purpose of expenditure and are nearly irrevocable; therefore, these amounts are recognized as revenue at
the time of their receipt or earlier if they meet the criteria of availability. In the other, monies must be expended on the
specific purpose or project before any amounts will be paid to the Village; therefore, revenue is recognized based upon the
expenditures recorded.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the
modified accrual basis of accounting, Revenues are recognized as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are
considered to be available when they are collectible within the current petiod, or soon enough thereafter to pay current
liabilities. The Village considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current fiscal
period, except for sales and telecommunication taxes collected within 90 days. Expenditures generally are recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting, However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditores relating to
compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, sales taxes, telecommunications taxes, licenses and permits, charges for services, fines and forfeits,
miscellaneous revenues and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be susceptible to accrual and
so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. Personal property replacement taxes are considered to be
measurable when they have been collected and allocated by the state and are recognized as revenue at that time. All other
revenue items are considered to be measurable and availabie only when cash is received by the Village.

The Village reports the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund is used to account for all activities of the general government not accounted for in some
other fund.

The TIF District Fund is used to account for the activities relating to the Tax Increment Financing District.
The Village reports the following proprietary funds, which are major funds:

The Electric Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses related to operating and maintaining the
Village’s Electric operations.

The Waterworks and Sewerage Fund is used to account for the revenues and expenses related to operating
and maintaining the Village’s Water and Sewer operations.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

D. — Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation, (Continued)

Additionally, the Village reports the following fund types:

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for specific revenues from which the expenditures are externally
imposed by outside entities or committed by ordinance.

The Debt Service Fund is used to account for the servicing of general long-term debt not being financed by
proprietary funds. The Tax Increment Financing Debt Service Fund is the only fund in this governmental
fund type.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for the resources used for the acquisition or construction of capital
facilities other than those financed by the enterprise fund activities.

The Permanent Fund is used to account for assets received and held for the perpetual care of the Village
Cemetery.

The Fiduciary Fund of the Village is used to account for assets held by the Village in a trustee capacity. The
Police Pension Trust Fund is used to account for assets received and held for the payment of benefits to
participants.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide financial statements.
Exceptions to this general rule are administrative charges between the Village’s General Fund and the Electric and
Waterworks and Sewerage Funds. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenuces
reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include: (1) charges fo customers or applicants for goods, services, or
privileges provided, (2) operating grants and contributions, and (3) capital grants and contributions, Internally
dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as program revenues, Likewise, genetal revenues
include all taxes.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items. Operating revenues and
expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with the
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the enterprise funds are charges
to customers for electric, water and sewer sales and service. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the
cost of sales and services, administrative expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not
meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Village’s policy to use restricted
resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

27




Village of Chatham, Hiinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

E. —Capital Assets

Capital assets are not capitalized in the governmental funds used to acquire or construct them, Instead, capital
acquisition and construction are reflected as expenditures in governmental funds. Capital assets are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial statements. All
purchased capital assets are valued at cost where historical records are available and at an estimated historical cost
where no historical records exist. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated fair market value on the date
received. The Village records all capital items, which are individually greater than $5,000, with a useful life of
greater than one year, as capital assets, Except for certain infrastructure acquired or constructed, which were partially
financed with Tax Increment Financing and General Obligation Bonds, infrastructure assets acquired prior to May 1,
2004, are not reported in the basic financial statements,

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend asset lives
are not capifalized. Improvements are capitalized and depreciated over the remaining useful lives of the related

capital assets, as applicable,

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Improvements 10 to 40 years
Buildings and grounds 20 to 40 years
Vehicles 5 years
Equipment S years
Infrastructure 4() years
Utility plant 10 to 40 years

E. — Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Village considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased with a
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

G. —Fund Balance/Net Position

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report nonspendable fund balance for amounts that are either not in
spendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Restrictions of fund balance reported for amounts
constrained by legal restrictions from outside parties for use for specific purpose, or externally imposed by outside entities.
None of the restricted fund balance result from enabling legislation adopted by the Village, Committed fund balance is
constrained by formal actions of the Village’s Board, which is considered the Village’s highest level of decision making
authority. Formal actions include ordinances approved by the Board. Assigned fund balance represents amounts constrained
by the Village’s intent to use them for a specific purpose, but that are neither restricted nor committed. Any residual fund
balance is reported as unassigned.

The Village’s flow of funds assumption prescribes that the funds with the highest level of constraint are expended first. If
restricted or unrestricted funds are available for spending, the restricted funds are spent first. Additional, if different levels of
unrestricted funds are available for spending the Village considers committed funds to be expended first followed by assigned
and then unassigned funds.

The Village has not established fund balance reserve policies for their governmental funds.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

(5. — Fund Balance/Net Position, (Continued)

In the government-wide financial statements, restricted net position is legally restricted by outside parties for a specific
purpose. Net position has not been restricted by enabling legislation adopted by the Village. Net investment in capital assets
consist of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balances of any borrowings used for the
acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets.

H. — Concentration of Suppliers

The Village of Chatham, Illinois has an agreement with the Illinois Municipal Electric Agency to purchase electric power
through transmission lines owned by the City of Springfield, [llinois. The agreement to purchase electric power expires
September 30, 2035.

The Village of Chatham has an agreement with the South Sangamon Water Commission, whereby the South Sangamon Water
Commission will supply water to the Village of Chatham until December 31, 2040, or 5 years after the expiration of the
original issue of Commission’s bonds, whichever is later. The Village pays for actual water usage and is not required to
purchase a minimum amount of water,

L. — Investments

Investments are stated at fair value based on quoted market prices at April 30, 2015. Non-negotiable certificates of deposit are
reported af cost.

J. — Inventories
* Inventories are stated at the lower of cost (using the first-in/first-out method) or market using the purchase method.

K. —- Compensated Absences

Vested or accumulated vacation leave and vested sick leave are accrued when incurred by the Village in the government-wide
and proprietaty fund financial statements. Vested or accumulated vacation leave of the proprietary fund is recorded as an
expense and liability of that fund as the benefits accrued to employees. A liability in the governmental funds is reported only
if the benefit has matured.

L. — Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary funds in the fund financial statements, long-term debt and other
long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or
proprietary fund statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds
using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount, Bond
issuance costs are expensed in the year of issuance,

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts during the current period.
The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as
other financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not
withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 1 — SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES, (CONTINUED)

M. — Interfund Transactions

Interfund services transactions are accounted for as revenues, expenditures or expenses. All other interfund transactions are
reported as transfers.

N. — Capitalized Interest

Interest costs are capitalized when incurred by proprietary funds on debt where proceeds were used to finance the construction
of assets. Interest earned on proceeds of tax-exempt borrowing arrangements restricted to the acquisition of qualifying assets
is offset against interest costs in determining the amount to be capitalized.

0. — Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows of resources.
This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies
to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to
liabilities, the statement of financial position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources, This
separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a
future period(s) and so will #of be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time,

NOTE 2 —PROPERTY TAX CALENDAR
The following information gives significant dates on the property tax calendar of the Village.

- The property tax lien date is January 1, 2013.

- The annual tax levy ordinance for 2013 taxes received during fiscal year 2015 was passed December 2013,

- The first installment of property taxes is due to the County Collector on July 1 and the second installment is due to the
County Collector on September 1.

- Significant amounts of property taxes for 2013 were distributed to the Village in July and September of 2014.

The 2014 taxes are intended to finance the 2016 fiscal year and are not considered available for current operations and are,
therefore, shown as unavailable revenue. The 2015 tax levy has not been recorded as a receivable at April 30, 2015,
Although the tax attached as a lien on property as of January 1, 2015, the tax will not be levied until December 2015, and,
accordingly, is not measurable at April 30, 2015.

NOTE 3 -~ DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The Village’s Board of Trustees has adopted an investment policy to invest in instruments allowed by Iilinois Compited
Statutes (ILCS). The policy further identifies allowable securities to include securities guaranteed by the full faith and credit
of the United States of America, interest-bearing savings accounts, certificates of deposit, or time deposits constituting direct
obligations of any bank as defined by the 1llinois Banking Act and only those insured by FDIC, shori-term discount
obligations of the Federal National Mortgage Association or in shares or other forms of security legally issuable by savings
and loan associations incorporated under the laws of State of Illinois, and Illinois Funds.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (CONTINUED)

It is the policy of the Village to invest its funds in a manner which will provide the highest investment return with the
maximum security while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the Village and conforming to all state and local statues
governing the investment of public funds, using the “prudent person” standard for managing the overall portfolio. The
primary objectives of the policy, in order of priority are: safety of principal, diversity of investments, liquidity, return on
investment, and maintaining public trust.

A. - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank’s failure, the Village’s
deposits may not be returned to them. To guard against credit risk for deposits with financial institutions the Village’s
investment policy requires all deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance be collateralized at
110% of the uninsured bank balance, with collateral held by the Village or third party or escrow agent of the pledging
institution, evidenced by a written safekeeping agreement.

B.— INVESTMENTS

Interest rate risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the market interest
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rates. In accordance with the Village’s investment policy, the Village limits its exposure to interest rate risk by
structuring the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for all operating purposes.
The policy limits investments of the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds to maturities of fifieen months from the date of
purchase. For all other investments, any investment purchased with a maturity of longer than two years must be specifically
pre-authorized by the Chair of the Administration Committee and the Village President.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. The Village’s investment
policy does not specifically address credit risk, but the Village limits its exposure to credit risk by primarily investing in
Iflinois Funds.

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the
Village will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. Illinois Funds are not
subject to custodial credit risk.

Concentration of credit visk — The Village limits the amount a financial institution may hold of the Village’s investment

portfolio to $100,000 excluding investments in U.S. Treasury securities held in safckeeping, investments in the Illinois Funds,
and investments at the financial institution in which the deposits in excess of $100,000 are secured by collateral.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (CONTINUED)

POLICE PENSION FUNDS

The Pension Board has adopted an investment policy to invest in instruments allowed by Illinois Compiled Statutes (ILCS).
The statutes allow pension funds to invest in the same securities as the Village. The policy further identifies allowable
secutities to include securities guaranteed by the full faith and credit of the United States of America, separate accounts of a
life insurance company authorized to do business in Illinois, savings accounts or certificates of deposit of a National or State
Bank, insured capital accounts and investments of State and Federal chartered savings and loan associations and credit unions
and interest bearing bonds or tax anticipation warrants of the United States, State of Ilfinois, or of any county, township, or
municipal corporation of the State of Illinois.

>

The Pension Board revised the investment policy in 2014 and authorized additional investments including mutual funds that
are managed by an investment company as defined and registered under the Federal Investment Company Act of 1940 and
registered under the Illinois Securities Law of 1953 and corporate bonds managed through an Investment Advisor pursuant to
40 HLCS 5/1-13.2(14).

A. - DEPOSITS WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

Custodial credit risk for deposits with financial institutions is the risk that in the event of a bank’s failure, the Pension Fund’s
deposits may not be returned to them. To guard against credit risk for deposits with financial institutions the Pension Fund’s
investment policy requires all deposits with financial institutions in excess of federal depository insurance be collateralized
and held at an independent third party institution in the name of the Police Pension Fund and evidenced by a written collateral
agreement.

B. —INVESTMENTS

Interest rafe risk is the risk that the market value of securities in the portfolio will fall due to changes in the market interest
rates. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to changes in market
interest rafes. In accordance with the Pension Fund’s investment policy, the Pension Fund limits its exposure to interest rate
risk by structuring the portfolio so that investments will have maturities to have available sufficient cash for all operating
purposes.

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the investment. This is
measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization, The Pension Fund’s
investment policy does not specifically address credit risk.

Custodial credif risk for investments in the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to the investment, the
Pension Fund will not be able to recover the value of its investments that are in possession of an outside party. Illinois Funds
and the open ended mutual funds are not subject to custodial credit risk. The Pension Fund’s investment poticy limits its
exposure to custodial credit risk for investments by requiring the purchase of certificates of deposit from financial institutions
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation, Federal Savings and Loan Insurance Corporation, or the National
Credit Union Administration.
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Village of Chatham, Iflinois

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS, (CONTINUED)

Concentration of credit risk — The Pension Fund places no limit on the amount the Pension Fund may invest in any one issuer,
The Pension Fund’s investments consist of certificates of deposit, Illinois Funds, mutual funds, and corporate and municipal

bonds.

NOTE 4— CAPITAL ASSETS

A. GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Capital asset activity for the year ending April 30, 2015 consists of the following;

Balances Balances
May 1, 2014 Additions Retirements  April 30, 2015
Land, not depreciated $ 372000 § - 3 - $ 372,000
Construction in progress, not depreciated 225,905 1,873,378 36.202 2,063,081
Total capital assets, not depreciated 597,905 1,873,378 36,202 2,435,081
Improvements 716,019 51,842 - 767,861
Buildings and grounds 627,423 - - 627,423
Vehicles 873,469 - 76,245 797,224
Equipment 851,630 48,405 - 900,035
Infrastructure 13,850,020 1,171,228 - 15,021,248
Total capital assets being depreciated 16,918,561 1.271,475 76,245 18,113,791
Total capital assets 17,516,466 3.144.853 112.447 20,548,872
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements 143,375 18,806 - 162,181
Buildings and grounds 325,246 18,072 : - 343,318
Vehicles 671,906 62,704 62,697 671,913
Equipment 627,852 78,571 - 706,423
Infrastructure 2,656,731 360,891 - 3,017,622
Total accumulated depreciation 4,425,110 539,044 62,697 4,901,457
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 12,493,451 732,431 13,548 13,212,334
Total capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation $13.091.356  $.2,605809 $_ 49,750  $15.647.415
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS, (CONTINUGED)

B. BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

Capital asset activity for the year ending April 30, 2015 consists of the following:

Balances Balances
ELECTRIC May 1,2014 Additions Retirements  April 30, 2015
Land, not depreciated $_ 279734 % - % - $_.279.734
Total capital assets, not depreciated 279,734 - - 279,734
Improvements 65,760 - - 65,760
Buildings and grounds 698,048 - - 698,048
Vehicles 769,051 114,387 42,508 840,930
Equipment 617,506 7,500 - 625,006
Utility Plant 15.927.967 382,183 - 16,310,150
Total capital assets being depreciated 18,078,332 504.070 42.508 18.539.894
Total capital assets 18,358,066 504,070 42,508 18,819,628
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements 29,644 1,354 - 30,998
Buiidings and grounds 353,588 15,644 - 369,232
Vehicles 750,025 28,944 ( 42,508) 736,461
Equipment 509,213 61,871 - 571,084
Utility Plant 5424074 435,667 - 5,859,741
Total accumulated depreciation 7.066.544 543.480 ( 42,508) 7,567,516
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 11,011,788 ( 39.410) - 10,972,378
Total capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation $11,291,522 (5_39.410) § - $11,252,112
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS, (CONTINUED)

B. BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES — Continued

WATERWORKS & SEWERAGE

Iand, not depreciated
Construction in progress, not depreciated

Total capital assets, not depreciated

Improvements
Buildings and grounds
Vehicles

Equipment

Utility Plant

Total capital assets being depreciated
Total capital assets
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements
Buildings and grounds
Vehicles
Equipment
Utility Plant
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated, net

Total capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation

Balances Balances
Mav 1,.2014 Additions Retirements  April 30,2015
$ 39,000 $ - $ - % 39,000

- 473,142 224916 248,226

39,000 473.142 224916 287,226
3,210 - - 3,210
106,069 - - 106,069
393,991 - - 303,991
400,008 70,117 - 470,125
15,839,575 924.473 - 16,764.048
16,742,853 994,590 - 17.737.443
16.781.853 1,467,732 224916 18.024.669
455 160 - 615
40,847 2,747 - 43,594
352,677 14,989 - 367,666
315,467 51,792 - 367,259

8,486,107 461,811 - 8947918

9,195,553 531,499 - 9.727.052

7.547.300 463,091 - 8.010.391
$ 7.586,300 036,233 224916 $_8297617
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NOTE 4 - CAPITAL ASSETS, {CONTINUED)

B. BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - Continued

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government $ 12,511
Culture and recreation 52,053
Public safety 28,148
Public works/transportation 446,332
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $_539,044

Business-type activities:

Electric $ 543,480
Waterworks and Sewerage 531.499
Total depreciation expense — business-type activities $1,074,979

NOTE 5 — RESTRICTED ASSETS

The Village reports restricted cash in the Efectric Fund due to the issuance of the 2014 General Obligation Bonds (Alternative
Revenue Source) and the 2010 Debt Certificates, restricted cash in the TIF District Fund due to the issuance of the 2009
General Obligation Bonds, and restricted cash in the General Fund due to the issuance of the 2001 General Obligation Bonds
and other restrictions relating to law enforcement and restricted cash in the waterworks and sewerage fund due to the issuance
of the Water Promissory Note, Series 2014,

ELECTRIC FUND

The Electric General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014 require the funding by the ufility of certain
reserve accounts. These reserve account balances are required to be invested as the ordinances call for and segregated from
the other funds. The following accounts were so segregated at Apri] 30, 2015.

Electric Fund;
Cash:
Electric GOB Bond and Interest $349.191

As of April 30, 2015, all accounts were funded as required by the bond ordinances, The funding requirements of these

accounts are established by the general obligation bond ordinances and are outlined as follows for the 2014 general obligation
bonds (Alternate Revenue Source).

Operation and Maintenance Account, established to establish a balance sufficient to pay operation and maintenance
expenses for the current month,
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NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS, (CONTINUED)

ELECTRIC FUND - Continued

Junior Bond and Interest Account, established to accumulate an amount sufficient to pay principal or interest or both.
There shall be deposited to the Junior Bond and Interest Account, a fractional amount of interest becoming due on the
next succeeding interest payment date and a fractional amount of principal becoming due on the next succeeding principal
maturity date of all of the Outstanding Junior Bonds,

Junior Bond Reserve Account, established to accumulate funds to be used to pay principal or interest on outstanding
bonds at any time when there are insufficient funds available in the Junior Bond and Interest Account to pay the same.

Depreciation, Improvement, and Extension Account, established to accumutate funds established per bond ordinances for
the payment of the cost of extraordinary maintenance, necessary repairs and replacements, or contingencies for which no
other funds are available,

Surplus Account, established to accumulate funds remaining in the System Fund, after crediting the required amounts to
the respective accounts noted above and after making up any deficiency in the above accounts. Then, at the discretion of
the Corporate Authorities, the funds shall be used, if at all, for one or more of the following purposes:

(1) For the purpose of constructing or acquiring repairs, replacements, or improvements to the System or

(2) For the purpose of purchasing Outstanding Bonds or

(3) For any other lawful corporate purpose (including but not limited to payments in lieu of taxes and general
supervision and administrative charges by the Issuer.)

The Electric Debt Certificates (Series 2010) Ordinances require the creation and funding of certain reserve accounts. These

reserve account balances are further required to be invested as stipulated in the ordinances and segregated from the other
funds.

The funding requirements of these accounts are established by the certificate ordinances and are outlined as follows:

Certificate Account (Debt Service), established for repayment of certificate principal and interest. Funding of this account
shall be determined by the Issuer.

Project Account, established to pay costs required for establishing and maintaining project associated with the certificates.

Rebate Account, established for deposit of necessary investment earnings to the extent required so as to maintain the tax
exempt status of the interest on the Certificates under Section 148 (f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended.
Any rebates, special impositions or taxes for such purpose payable to the United States of America (Internal Revenue
Service) shall be payable from applicable excess earnings or other sources which are to be deposited in the Rebate
Account.

During fiscal year 2015, the Village made monthly principal and interest payments on the 2010 Electric Debt Certificates into
the Debt Service Certificate Account. The Village did not accumulate funds in the Project or Rebate Account.
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NOTE 5 - RESTRICTED ASSETS, (CONTINUED)

TAX INCREMENT FINANCING

The Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2009 require the funding by the
incremental tax income derived from a separately created tax increment financing district of certain reserve accounts. These
reserve account balances are required to be invested as stipulated in ordinances and segregated from the other funds. The
following accounts were so segregated at April 30, 2015.

Tax Increment Financing Fund:

Debt
Service
Cash:
TIF Bond and Interest $.97.408

As of April 30, 2015, all accounts were funded as required by the bond ordinance. The funding requirements of these
accounts are established by the tax increment financing bond ordinance and are outlined as follows:

Tax Increment Financing Account, established to establish a balance sufficient to pay necessary tax increment financing
costs required for establishing and maintaining the Project Area. The account balance totals $30,445 as of April 30, 2015.

Bond and Interest Account, established to accumulate an amount sufficient to pay principal or interest or both, There shall
be deposited to the Bond and Interest Account, a fractional amount of interest becoming due on the next succeeding
interest payment date and a fractional amount of principal becoming due on the next succeeding principal maturity date of
al! of the Outstanding Bonds,

Surplus Account, established to accumulate funds remaining in the Special Tax Allocation Fund, after crediting the
required amounts to the respective accounts noted above and after making up any deficiency in the above accounts. Then,
at the discretion of the Corporate Authorities, the funds shall be used, if at all, for one or more of the following purposes:

(1) For the purpose of paying any Project costs or

(2) For the purpose of purchasing Outstanding Bonds or

(3} For the purpose of paying for other redevelopment costs and projects within the Project Area or

{4) For the purpose of distributing funds to the taxing districts or municipal corporations having power to tax real
property located in the Project Area, in accordance with the TIF Act

(5) For any other lawful corporate purpose

38




Village of Chatham, INinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE S — RESTRICTED ASSETS, (CONTINUED)

GENERAL FUND

The General Obligation Bonds, Series 2001 require the funding of a Debt Service account with taxes levied to be used for the
sole purpose of paying principal of and interest on the Bonds. As of April 30, 2015, the account was funded as required by the
ordinance. In addition, there are other restricted accounts relating to law enforcement.

General Fund

Cash:
2001 Debt Service $ 18,446
Crime Prevention 2,665
Drug Asset Forfeiture 6,400
DU1 Equipment 24,672
Police Vehicle Fees 11,878
Run for the Park 3,206

Total $._67.267
WATERWORKS AND SEWERAGE FUND

The Water Promissory Note, Series 2014 require the funding by the utility of certain reserve accounts, These reserve account
balances are required to be invested as stipulated in ordinances and segregated from the other funds. The following account
was so segregated at April 30, 2015.

Waterworks and Sewerage Fund

Debt Service
Cash: :
Water Note Fund $ 21,040

As of April 30, 2015, all accounts were funded as required by the Promissory Note. The funding requirements of these
accounts are established by the promissory note ordinance and all outlined as follows:

Water Note Fund, established to fund for the payment of the principal of and interest on the Note. Interest income or
investment profit earned in the Note fund shall be retained in the Note Fund for payment of the principal of or interest on
the Note on the interest payment date next after such interest or profit is received or, to the extent lawful and as
determined by the Village, transferred to such other fund as may be determined.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES

Tax Increment Financing General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source)

The Village issued bonds for the purpose to construct improvements benefitting a separately created tax ingrement financing

district and pledges incremental tax income derived from that district. The Village pays debt service expenditures from
increment propetty taxes collected within the Tax Increment Financing District. Tax increment financing bonds currently

outstanding are as follows:

$690,000 Tax Increment General Obligation Bonds
(Alternative Revenue Source), Series 2009
dated October 27, 2009 payable through August 1, 2015
in various amounts ranging from $115,000 to $125,000;
interest rates ranging from 2.75% to 3.0%

$125,000

Future principal and interest payments on the tax increment financing general obligation bonds (alternate revenue source) are

as follows:
Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $125,000 $_ 1875 $126,875
General Obligation Bonds
$390,000 General Obligation Bonds (Series 2001) for the purpose
of capital improvements to the Village payable through
December 30, 2016 in various amounts ranging
from $33,000 to $36,000; interest rate of 5.00% $_71,000
Futore principal and interest payments on general obligation bonds are as follows:
Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 35,000 $ 3,550 $ 38,550
2017 36,000 1,800 37.800
Total $ 71,000 $_5350 $_76,350
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - Continued

Street Shop Building Note:

On October 15, 2014, the Village entered into an agreement with a financial institution to finance costs associated with the
construction of a shop building for the street and water departments. The Village borrowed $460,000 at an interest rate of
1.74% to be paid in monthly installments of $4,185 beginning November 15, 2014, with a final payment due October 15,

2024. The assets and related obligation has been allocated half to the Street Fund and half to the Waterworks and Sewerage
Fund. The principal balance for the governmental activities as of April 30, 2015 is $219,441 and the principal balance for the

business-type activities as of April 30, 2015 is $219,442 for a combined total of $438,883. Future principal and interest

payments on the notes payable are as follows:

Years Ending April 30,

2016
2017
2018
2019
2020
2021-2025

Total

Capital Leases

The Village is obligated under an equipment lease accounted for as a capital lease. The leased asset (truck and snowplow
attachment) and related obligation are accounted for as governmental activities. The asset under the capital lease net of
depreciation totaled $50,653 at April 30, 2015. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the

Principal Interest Total

$ 21,459 $ 3,648 $ 25,107
21,835 3272 25,107
22,218 2,889 25,107
22,607 2,500 25,107
23,003 2,104 25,107
108,319 4,661 112,980

$219.441 $_19.074 $238.515

capital lease, together with the net present value of the minimum lease payments at April 30, 2015:

Year Ending April 30,

2016
2017

Future minimum lease payments
Less: Amount representing interest

Present value of minimum lease payments

$ 27,349
13,724

41,073

( _2317)

$_ 38,756
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - Continued

Capital eases - Continued

The Village is obligated under a vehicle lease accounted for as a capital lease, The leased asset (street sweeper) and related
obligation are accounted for as governmental activities. The asset under the capital lease net of depreciation totaled $80,537 at
April 30, 2015, The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, together with the net
present value of the minimum lease payments at April 30, 2015:

Year Ending April 30,
2016 $ 12,872
2017 12,872
2018 12,872
2019 4,270
Future minimum lease payments 42,886
Less: Amount representing interest (_ 1428)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 41,458

The Village is obligated under a vehicle lease accounted for as a capital lease. The leased asset (police vehicle) and refated
obligation are accounted for as governmental activities, The asset under the capital lease net of depreciation totaled $15,665 at
April 30, 2015. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, together with the net
present value of the minimum lease payments at April 30, 2015:

Year Ending Apri] 30,
2016 $ 8902
2017 1,495
Future minimuem lease payments 10,397
Less: Amount representing interest ( 125)
Present value of minimum lease payments $ 10,272
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES - Continued

Following is a summary of the changes that occurred to the liabilities reported in the governmental activities of the Village for
the year ended April 30, 2015.
Balances Balances
May 1,2014 Additions Retirements  April 30, 2015

G.0. bonds $ 104,000 $ - ($ 330000 $ 71,000
TIF G.O. bonds 245,000 - { 120,000) 125,000
Notes payable - 230,000 (10,558 219,442
Capital lease 160,243 - (  69,757) 90,486
Net pension obligation 898,199 - (  34,723) 863,476
Net OPEB obligation 398,790 107,051 - 505,841
Compensated absences 339,869 - ( 8.491) 331378

$2,146,101 $_337,051 ($.276,529)  $2,206,623

Following are governmental activities obligations due within one year:

G.O. bonds $ 35,000
TIF G.O. bonds 125,000
Capital lease 47,739
Note payable 21,459
Compensated absences 331.378

Total $_560.576

The amount available for retirement of governmental long-term debt is made up of the following:

2001 Debt Service (General Fund) $ 18446
Restricted Cash (TIF Debt Service Fund) 97.408
Total $_115.854
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES

General Obligation Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source)

$3,805,000 Electric General Obligation Refunding Bond
(Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014, for the purpose
of refunding certain outstanding prior bonds of the Village,

payable through November 1, 2028 in

various amounts ranging from $105,000 to $336,000;

interest rates ranging from 2.96% to 3.78%

$3,571,000

Future principal and interest payments on general obligation (alternate revenue source) bonds are as follows:

Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 ¥ 231,000 § 119,547 $ 350,547
2017 235,000 112,501 347,501
2018 247,000 105,287 352,287
2019 260,000 97,555 357,555
2020 263,000 89,391 352,391
2021-2025 _ 1,467,000 310,925 1,777,925
2026-2029 868,000 63.049 931,049
Total $3,571,000 $_898,255 $4,469.255
Debt Certificates
$200,000 Electric Debt Certificates, Series 2010,
For improvements of the electric system,
payable through May 1, 2015; interest rate 3.75% $_ 45,000
Future principal and interest payments on the debt certificates are as follows:
Years Ending Aprit 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $__45.000 $ 844 $_ 45844
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - Continued

Street Shop.Building Note:

On October 15, 2014, the Village entered into an agreement with a financial institution to finance costs associated with the
construction of a shop building for the street and water departments, The Village borrowed $460,000 at an interest rate of
1.74% to be paid in monthly installments of $4,185 beginning November 15, 2014, with a final payment due October 15,
2024. The assets and related obligation has been allocated half to the Street Fund and half to the Waterworks and Sewerage
Fund. The principal balance for the governmental activities as of April 30, 2015 is $219,441 and the principal balance for the
business-type activities as of April 30, 2015 is $219,442 for a combined total of $438,883. Future principal and interest
payments on the notes payable are as follows:

Water/Sewer Utility

Years Ending Aprit 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 21,459 $ 3,648 $ 25,107
2017 ‘ 21,835 3,272 25,107
2018 22,218 2,889 25,107
2019 22,607 2,500 25,107
2020 23,003 2,104 25,107
2021-2025 108,320 4,661 112,981
Total $219.442 $_19.074 $238.516

Ground Storage Loan:

On May 23, 2013, the Village entered into an agreement with a financial institution to finance costs associated with
improvements to the above ground storage tank, The Village borrowed $243,100 at an interest rate of 2.00 percent to be paid
in monthly installments of $4,264 beginning May 23, 2013, with a final payment due May 23, 2018. The assets and related
obligation has been allocated to the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. The principal balance for the business-type activities as
April 30, 2015 was $152,756. Future principal and interest payments on the notes payable are as follows:

Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 48,455 $ 2,654 $ 51,109
2017 49,453 1,656 51,109
2018 50,465 644 51,109
2019 4,383 7 4,390
Totals $152.756 $__4.961 $157,717
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NOTE 6 - LONG-TERM DEBT. (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - Continued

Water Promissory Note, Series 2014:

On March 7, 2014, the Village entered into an agreement with a financial institution to finance the costs of a settlement
agreement with the City of Springfield, Illinois, The Village borrowed $710,000 at an interest rate of 1.25 percent to be paid
in semi-annual interest payments payable on August 1 and February 1 of each year beginning August 1, 2014. Principal will
be paid in installments on February of each of the years until maturity February 1, 2024. The interest rate remains fixed until
January 31, 2019 and thereafter, the rate will change to a floating rate equal to the Prime Rate minus 2% not to exceed 2.25%.
The principal balance for the business-type activities as of April 30, 2015 was $642,903. The related obligation has been
allocated to the Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. Future principal and interest payments on the notes payable are as follows:

Years Ending April 30, Principal Interest Total
2016 $ 67,936 $ 8,036 $ 75,972
2017 08,785 7,188 75,973
2018 69,645 6,328 75,973
2019 70,516 5,456 75,972
2020 69,983 8,236 78,219
2021-2024 296.038 16.836 312.874
Totals $642,903 $ 52,080 $694,983

Capital Leases

The Village is obligated under an equipment lease accounted for as a capital lease. The leased asset (aerial truck) and related
obligation are accounted for as business-type activities. The asset under the capital lease net of depreciation totaled $95,383 at
Aprit 30,2015. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, together with the net
present value of the minimum lease payments at April 30, 2015:

Year Ending April 30,
2016 $ 23,173
2017 23,173
2018 23,173
2019 23,173
2020 5,761
Future minimum lease payments 98,453
Less: Amount representing inferest ( 3477
Present value of minimum lease payments $_94,976
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NOTE 6 — LONG-TERM DEBT, (CONTINUED)

BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES - Continued

Capital Leases - Continued

The Viltage is obligated under an equipment lease accounted for as a capital lease. The leased asset (backhoe) and related
obligation are accounted for as business-type activities. The asset under the capital lease net of depreciation totaled $55,596 at
April 30, 2015. The following is a schedule of future minimum lease payments under the capital lease, together with the net
present value of the minimum lease payments at April 30, 2015;

Year Ending April 30,

2016 $ 23,119

2017 23,119

2018 1,927
Future minimum lease payments 48,165
Less: Amount representing interest ( 1,093)
Present value of minimum lease payments $.__47.072

Following is a summary of the changes that occutred to the liabilities reported in the business-type activities of the Village for
the year ended April 30, 2015.
Balances Balances
May 1. 2014 Additions Retirements  April 30, 2015

G.0O. bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) $3,805,000 $ - ($ 234,000) $3,571,000
Debt certificates 85,000 - 40,000) 45,000
Notes payable 910,191 230,000 (125,090 1,015,101
Capital leases 7,632 178,704  ( 44,288) 142,048
Net OPEB obligation 136,302 43,632 - 179,934
Compensated absences 226,375 190.836 ( _226,375) 190,836

$5,170,500 $_643,172  ($_669.753)  $5,143.919

Following are business-type activities obligations due within one year:

G.0. bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) $ 231,000
Debt certificates 45,000
Capital leases 44,252
Notes payable 137.850
Compensated absences 190,836

Total $_648,938

NOTE 7 -PLEDGED REVENUES

The Village has pledged all revenue from the Village’s Electric operations to repay the $3,805,000 Electric General Obligation
Refunding Bonds (Alternate Revenue Source), Series 2014 which is payable through 2028. Principal and interest paid for the
Series 2014 bonds was $331,665. The total principal and interest remaining on the bond issue, Series 2014, is $3,571,000 and
total revenues for the current year were $9,427,978.
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NOTE 8 ~- INTERFUND BALANCES

Interfund receivable and payable balances at April 30 2015 consist of:

Interfund Interfund
Receivables Payables
General Fund:
Aggregate Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ 37325 $ -
Aggregate Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
General Fund - 3,325
Electric Fund:
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund 358,258 -
Waterworks and Sewerage Fund:
Electric Fund - 358,258
Total $_361,583 $_361,583

The purpose of the interfund receivable and payable balances are as follows:

e $3,325 due from the Aggregate Nonmajor Governmental Funds to the General Fund. $3,325 of the balance relates to

excess utility tax receipts transferred to the Utility Tax Fund from the General Fund.

*  $358,258 was for payment of operating expenses by the Electric Fund for Waterworks and Sewerage Fund. The Village

expects this obligation to be paid.

Transfers In

Transfers Out

General Fund:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds $ - § 326,000
TIF District Fund:
Nonmajor Governmental Funds - 1,717,107
Nonmajor Governmental Funds:
General Fund 326,000 -
TIF District Fund 1,717,107 -
Total interfund transfers $2,043,107 $2,043,107

The purposes of interfund transfers are as follows:

e $326,000 transferred from the General Fund fo nonmajor governmental funds. This amount relates to a transfer to the

Capital Projects Fund for future capital projects. The transfers will not be repaid.

e 31,717,107 transferred from the TIF District Fund to the nonmajor governmental funds, Of this amount, $114,173 relates
to a transfer to the TIF District Debt Service Fund for debt service payments and $1,602,934 relates to transfers for Capital

Projects. These transfers will not be repaid.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND

Plan Description. The Village of Chatham’s defined benefit pension plan for Regular employees provides retirement and
disability benefits, post retirement increases, and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, The Village’s plan is
affiliated with the Illinois Municipal Retirement Fund (IMRF), an agent multiple-employer plan. Benefit provisions are
established by statute and may only be changed by the General Assembly of the State of Iilinois. IMRF issues a publicly
available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information (RSI). The report may be
obtained on-line at www.imsflorg,

IMRF provides two tiers of pension benefits. Employees hired prior to January 1, 2011, are eligible for Tier 1 benefits. For
Tier 1 employees, pension benefits vest after eight years of service. Participating members who retire at age 55 (reduced
benefits) or after age 60 (full benefits) with eight years of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable
monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years,
and 2% for each year thereafter.

Employees hired on or after January 1, 2011, are cligible for Tier 2 benefits. For Tier 2 employees, pension benefits vest after
10 years of service. Participating members who retire at age 62 (reduced benefits) or after age 67 (full benefits) with 10 years
of credited service are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, in an amount equal to 1 2/3% of their
final rate of earnings, for each year of credited service up to 15 years, and 2% for each year thereafter.

Funding Policy. As set by statute, the Village’s Regular plan members are required to contribute 4.50 percent of their annual
covered salary. The statute requires employers to contribute the amount necessary, in addition to member contributions, to
finance the retirement coverage of its own employees. The employer annual required contribution rate for calendar year 2014
was 13.72 percent. The Village also contributes for disability benefits, death benefits, and supplemental retirement benefits,
all of which are pooled at the IMRF level. Contribution rates for disability and death benefits are set by the IMRF Board of
Trustees, which the supplemental retirernent benefits rate is set by statute,

Annual Pension Cost. The required contribution for the fiscal year ending April 30, 2015 was $390,527.

Three-Year Trend Information for Regular Plan

Fiscal Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension

Year Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
04/30/15 $390,527 11.35% $0
04/30/14 $325,356 100% $0
04/30/13 $310,616 100% $0
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Village of Chatham, Hlinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9~ RETIREMTNT PLANS, (CONTINUED)

ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND - Continued

The required contribution for 2014 was determined as part of the December 31, 2012 actuarial valuation using the entry age
normal actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions at December 31, 2012, included (2) 7.50% investment rate of return
(net of administrative and direct investment expenses), (b) projected salary increases of 4.00% a year, attributable to inflation,
(c) additional projected salary increases ranging from 0.4% to 10.0% per year depending on age and service, atiributable to
seniority/merit, and (d) post retirement benefit increases of 3% annually. The actuarial value of the Village's Regular plan
assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term volatility in the market value of investments over
a five-year period with a 20% corridor between the actuarial and market value of assets. The Village's Regular plan's
unfunded actuarial accrued liability at December 31, 2012 is being amortized as a level percentage of projected payroll on an
open 29 year basis.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of December 31, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Regular plan
was 69.23 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $7,682,997 and the actuarial value of assets was
$5,318,914, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $2,364,083. The covered payroll for calendar
year 2014 (annual payroll of active employees covered by the plan) was $2,363,853 and the ratio of the UAAL to covered
payroll was 100 percent,

The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information (RSI) following the notes to the financial
statements, presents multiyear trend information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing
over time relative to the actuarial accrued liability for benefits.

POLICE PENSION FUND

Plan Description. Police sworn personnel are covered by the Police Pension Plan, which is a defined benefit single employer
pension plan. The plan issued an annual report to the Illinois Department of Insurance; however, they do not issue their own
stand-alone financial statements. The Village accounts for the plan as a pension trust fund. Although this is a single employer
pension plan, the defined benefits, as well as the employee and employer contribution levels, are mandated by Illinois
Compiled Statutes (40 ILCS 5/3-1) and may be amended only by the Illinois legislature. Plan members’ contributions are
recognized in the period in which the contributions are due. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the
employer has made a formal commitment to provide the contributions.

The Plan provides retirement benefits through two tiers of benefits as well as death and disability benefits, Tier 1 employees
(those hired prior to January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 50 or older with 20 or more years of creditable service are entitled to
receive an annual retirement benefit equal to one-half of the salary attached to the rank held on the last day of service, or for
one year prior to the last day, whichever is greater, The annual benefit shall be increased by 2.5% of such salary for each
additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 years, to a maximum of 75% of such salary. Employees with at least eight
years but less than 20 years of credited service may retire at or after age 60 and receive a reduced benefit, The monthly benefit
of a police officer who retired with 20 or more years of service after January 1977 shall be increased annually, following the
first anniversary date of retirement and be paid upon reaching the age of at least 55 years, by 3% of the original pension and
3% compounded annually thereafter.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 - RETIREMENT PLANS, (CONTINUED)

POLICE PENSION FUND - Continued

Tier 2 employees (those hired on or after January 1, 2011) attaining the age of 55 or older with 10 or more years of creditable
service are entitled to receive an annual retirement benefit equal to the average monthly salary obtained by dividing the total
salary of the police officer during the 96 consecutive months of service within the last 120 months of service in which the total
salary was the highest by the number of months of service in that period. Police officers’ salary for pension purposes is
capped at $106,800, plus the lesser of ' of the annual change in the Consumer Price Index or 3.00% compounded. The
annual benefit shall be increased by 2.50% of such salary for each additional year of service over 20 years up to 30 yearsto a
maximum of 75.00% of such salary. Employees with at least 10 years may retire at or after age 50 and receive a reduced
benefit (i.e. 2% for each month under 55). The monthly benefit of a Tier 2 police officer shall be increased annually at age 60
on the January 1 after the police officer retires, or the first anniversary of the pension starting date, whichever is later. Non-
compounding increases occur annually, each January thereafter. The increase is the lesser of 3.00% or ' of the change in the
Consumer Price Index for the proceeding calendar year.

Funding Policy. Covered employees are required to contribute 9.91% of their base salary to the Plan. If an employee leaves
covered employment with less than 20 years of service, accumulated employee contributions may be refunded without
accumulated interest, The Village’s annual contribution to the plan is provided by property tax levy. These taxes are required
to be of an amount necessary to finance the plan as actuarially determined by an enrolled actuary. Effective January 1, 2011,
the Village has until the year 2040 to fund 90% of the past service cost for the Police Pension Plan. For the year ended April
30, 2015, the Village’s contribution was 30.01 percent of covered payroll.

Annual Pension Cost and Net Pension Asset. The Village’s annual pension cost and net pension asset to the Police Pension
Plan for the most current year (April 30, 2015) were as follows:

Annual required contributions $ 319,662
Interest on net pension asset 58,383
Adjustments to annual required contribution ( __71.654)
Annual pension cost 306,391
Annual contributions made 341.113
Change in net pension obligation (34,722
Net pension obligation (asset), beginning of year 898,199
Net pension obligation (asset), end of year $_863,477

Three-Year Trend Information for Police Pension Plan

Fiscal Annual Pension Percentage of Net Pension
Year Ending Cost (APC) APC Contributed Obligation
04/30/15 306,391 111.34% 863,477
04/30/14 311,893 92.74% 898,199
04/30/13 288,403 113.69% 875,556
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Village of Chatham, Hlinois
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 9 — RETIREMENT PLANS, (CONTINUED)

POLICE PENSION FUND - Continued

The annual required contribution was determined as part of the May 1, 2014 actuarial valuation using the entry age normal
actuarial cost method. The actuarial assumptions included (a) 6.50 percent investment rate of return and (b) projected salary
increases ranging from 1.12 to 4.86 percent. Both (a) and (b) included an inflation component of 2.5 percent and cost of living
increases of 3 percent. The actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that spread the effects of short-term
volatility in the market value of investments over a five-year period. The unfunded actuarial accrued liability is being
amortized as a level dollar amount on a closed basis. The remaining amortization period at the May 1, 2014 actuarial
valuation date was 23 years.

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of May 1, 2014, the most recent actuarial valuation date, the Police Pension Plan
was 61,17 percent funded. The actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $9,472,381 and the actuarial value of assets was
$5,793,795, resulting in an underfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) of $3,678,586. The covered payroll of active
employees covered by the plan was $1,136,776 and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 323.60 percent.

The schedule of funding progress, presented as RSI following the notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend
information about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial
accrued liability for benefits,

NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

PLAN DESCRIPTION

In addition to providing the pension benefits described, the Village provides postemployment health care benefits (OPEB) for
retired employees through a single employer defined benefit plan. The benefits, benefit levels, employee contributions and
employer confributions are governed by the Village and can be amended by the Village through its personnel manual and
union contracts. The plan is not accounted for as a trust fund, and an irrevocable trust has not been established to account for
the plan. The plan does not issue a separate report.

BENEFITS PROVIDED

The Village provides post retirement health benefits, as per the requirements of local ordinances and labor agreements.

Retirees covered under the International Brotherhood of Electrical Workers, Local Number 51 and the International Union of
Operating Engineers, Local 965 AFL-CIOQ, are eligible to continue their health care coverage with the Village’s carrier, The
Village will pay the retirees single medical insurance coverage provided the employee is not eligible from other sources as per
the following schedule upon retirement until said empioyee is eligible for Medicare benefits. If the employee is eligible for
coverage from other sources the Village will pay that amount provided it does not exceed the amount the Village regularly
pays for single member premium coverage. If the premium contribution exceeds the costs of the Village contribution, the
retiree will be eligible to remain on the Village plan. To be eligible for this benefit, the retiree shall be at least fifty-five years
of age and has been an employce of the Village for a minimum of 10 years.

10 years of employment with the Village = 25% of single medical coverage premium

15 years of employment with the Village = 50% of single medical coverage premium
20 years of employment with the Village = 100% of single medical coverage premium
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 — OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS, (CONTINUED)

BENEFITS PROVIDED - Continued

All other Village retirees are eligible to continue their health coverage with the Village’s catrier, provided the employee has

completed a minimum of 20 years of service and is not eligible for equal insurance from another source. The Village will pay
the cost for medical insurance until the retiree is eligible for Medicare.

MEMBERSHIP
At May 1, 2014 (latest information available), membership consisted of:
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 6

Terminated employees entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them
Active vested plan members

Active nonvested plan members _Si

TOTAL 57

Participating employers 1
FUNDING POLICY

The Village negotiates the contribution percentages between the Village and employees through union contracts and personnel
policy. The Village contributes the cost of providing the benefits to the retirees via the insured plan (pay as you go). For the
fiscal year ended April 30, 2015, the Village contributed $208,936.

ANNUAL OPEB COSTS AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION

The Village had an actuarial valuation performed for the plan as of May 1, 2014 to determine the employer’s annual required
contribution (ARC) for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2015. The Village’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual
OPEB cost contributed to the plan and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal years 2013, 2014, and 2015 was as follows:

Fiscal Annual Percentage of
Year OPEB Employer Annual OPEB Net OPER
Ending Cost Contributions Cost Contributed Obligation
April 30,2013 $174,538 $ 17,099 9.80% $376,604
April 30,2014 $175,588 $ 17,0909 9.73% $535,093
April 30,2015 $359,617 $208,936 58.09% $685,775
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

NOTE 10 - OTHER POST-EMPL.OYMENT BENEFITS, (CONTINUED)
ANNUAL OPEB COSTS AND NET OPEB OBLIGATION - Continued

The net OPEB obligation NOPEBO) at April 30, 2015 was calcutated as follows;

Annual required contribution $ 369,158
Interest on net OPEB obligation 21,484
Adjustment to annual required contribution ( __30945)
Annval OPEB Cost 359,617
Contributions made ( __208.936)
Increase (decrease) in net OPEB obligation 150,682
Net OPEB obligation beginning of year 535.093
NET OPEB OBLIGATION END OF YEAR $_685,775

Funded Status and Funding Progress. The funded status of the plan as of May 1, 2013 (latest information available), was as
follows:

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) $3,357,485
Actuarial value of plan assets -
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) $3,357.485
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/AAL) 0%
Covered payroll (active plan members) Not Available
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll Not Available

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the
probability of occurrence of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future employment, mortality and
the healthcare cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required contributions of
the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared with past expectations and new estimates are
made about the future. The schedule of funding progress, presented as required supplementary information following the
notes to the financial statements, presents multiyear trend information that shows whether the actuarial value of plan assets is
increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are based on the substantive plan
(the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and include the types of benefits provided at the time of each
valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The
actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial
accrued liabilities and the actuarial value of assets, consistent with the long-term perspective of the calculations.

In the May 1, 2014 actuarial valuation, the entry-age actuarial cost method was used. The actuarial assumptions included a
4.00% investment rate of return and an annual healthcare cost trend rate of 8.0% with an ultimate healthcare inflation rate of
6.0%. Both rates include a 4.00% inflation assumption. The actuarial value of assets was not determined as the Village has
not advance funded its obligation. The plan’s unfunded actuarial accrued lability is being amortized as a level percentage of
projected payroll on an open basis, The remaining amortization period at April 30, 2015, was 28 years.
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NOTE 11 - RISK MANAGEMENT

The Village is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets, errors and
omissions, injuries to employees, and natural disasters. To insure against the losses, the Village participates in the Iflinois
Municipal League Risk Management Association (IMLRMA), a public entity risk pool with transfers of risk, The Village
pays an annual premium to IMLRMA for its coverage. Employee health risks are insured through the purchase of a
commercial insurance plan. Settled claims have not exceeded this coverage in any of the past three fiscal years.

NOTE 12 — JOINT VENTURE

During fiscal year 2009, the Village, along with Village of New Berlin, Illinois, established the South Sangamon Water
Commission. The Commission is a municipal corporation established pursuant to the provisions of the Water Commission
Act of the State of Hlinois (65 ILCS 5/11-135-1 et. seq.) for the purpose of constructing and operating a water supply
distribution system serving its customers.

During fiscal year 2010, the Village entered into a wholesale water agreement with the South Sangamon Water Commission
whereby the Water Commission will supply water to the Village untit December 31, 2040, or 5 years after the expiration of

the original issue of the Commission’s bonds, whichever is later, The agreement became effective when the treatment plant
commenced operations in May of 2012.

The Commission’s fiscal year end in April 30. Separate financial statements are available for the Commission by contacting
the South Sangamon Water Commission. Summarized financial information of the Commission as of and for the year ended
April 30, 2015, follows:

Statement of Net Position Information:

Assets:

Current assets $ 878305
Restricted assets 2,238,613
Property and equipment, net 31,145,800
Total assets $34.262.718
Liabilities and Net Position:

Current Habilities $ 1,132,445
Noncurrent liabilities 32,820,600
Net position 309,673
Total liabilities and net position $34,262,718

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position:

Operating revenue $ 2,888,018
Operating expenses 1,911,325
Operating net income 076,693
Nonoperating revenue 1,697
Nonoperating expense ( 1,716,810)
Capital contributions 472,715
Change in net position (265,705
Net position, beginning 575378
Net position, ending $_309.673
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NOTE 13 - CONTINGENCIES

The Village is also in litigation over a tax increment financing redevelopment agreement where the plaintiffs are seeking

specific performance of the agreement whereby the Village agreed to reimburse the plaintiffs a portion of their development

costs. The Village intends to vigorously defend. The ontcome is unknown at April 30, 2015,
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




Actuarial
Valuation
Date

12/31/14
12/31/13
12/31/12
12731/11
12/31/10
12/31/09

Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
Required Supplementa! Information

April 30, 2015
Unfunded
Actuarial Actuarial Accrued (Overfunded)
Value of Liability (AAL) AAL Funded
Assets - Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio
(a) (h) (b-2) {a/b)

$5,318,914 $7,682,997 $2,364,083 69.23%
5,369,992 7,443,724 2,073,732 72.14%
4,554,587 6,793,937 2,239,350 67.04%
4,324,413 6,571,589 2,247,176 65.80%
3,977,418 6,166,795 2,189,377 64.50%
3,522,489 5,224,833 1,702,344 67.42%

UAAlL asa

Covered Percentage of

Payroll Covered Payroll

(€) ((b-a)/c)

$2,363,853 100.01%
2,289,425 90.58%
2,205,800 101.52%
2,096,580 107.16%
2,127,991 102.88%
1,965,543 86.61%

57




Year
Ending

04/30/15
04/30/14
04/30/13
04/30/12
04/30/11
04/30/10

Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
ILLINOIS MUNICIPAL RETIREMENT FUND
Required Supplemental Information

Aprii 30, 2015
Annual
Required
Employer Contribution
Contributions {ARC)
$390,527 $390,527
325356 325,356
310,616 310,616
276,898 276,898
258,937 258,937
240,050 240,050

Percentage

Contributed

111.35%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
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Actuarial
Valuation
Date

05/01/14
05/01/13
05/01/12
05/01/11
05/01/10
05/01/09

1
Actuarial
Value of

Assets

$5,566,102
5,160,794
4,629,832
4,756 4T3
4,265,167
3,778,387

Village of Chatham, IHlinois

SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

POLICE PENSION TRUST FUND
Required Supplemental Information

2)
Actuarial
Accrued
Liability
(AAL)
- Entry Age

$7,660,814
7,348,317
6,759,040
6,352,126
5,688,963
5,104,866

April 30,2015
4
Unfunded
3 (Overfunded)
Funded AAL
Ratio (UAAL)
)Y/ (2) (2) - (1)
72.66% $2,094,712
70.23% 2,187,523
70.37% 1,949,208
74.88% 1,595,653
74.97% 1,423,796
74.02% 1,326,479

)

Covered
Payroll

$1,136,776
1,036,760
1,033,555
966,294
899,640
899,045

UAAL
{Overfunded)
asa
Percentage
of Covered
Payrolt

B/ (5

184.27%
211.02%
188.59%
165.13%
158.26%
147.54%

Note: The Village has elected to have biennial valuations performed for the Police Pension Plan.
Each valuation provides two years of data.
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Fiscal
Year

2015
2014
2013
2012
2011
2010

Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
POLICE PENSION TRUST FUND
Required Supplemental Information

April 30,2015
Annual
Required
Employer Contribution Percentage
Contributions (ARC) Contributed
$341,113 $306,391 111.34%
289,251 323,545 89.40%
327,890 298,574 109.82%
275,939 324,127 85.13%
283,016 288,172 98.21%
244,569 272,172 89.86%

Note: The Village has elected to have biennial valuations performed for the
Police Pension Plan. Each valuation provides two years of data.

Net
Pension

Obligation

$863,476
898,199
875,556
915,043
876,292
879,641
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Actuarial
Actuarial Value of
Valuation Assets
Date (a)
04/30/15 N/A
04/30/14 N/A
04/30/13 N/A
04/30/12 -
04/30/11 N/A
04/30/10 N/A

Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF FUNDING PROGRESS

OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN

Required Supplemental Information
April 30,2015

Actuarial Accrued

Liability (AAL) AAL Funded
-—Entry Age (UVAAL) Ratio
(b) (b-a) _(am)
3,357,485 3,357,485 0.00%
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A
1,826,860 1,826,860 0.00%
N/A N/A N/A
N/A N/A N/A

N/A Information is not available as an actuarial valuation was not performed,

The Village implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2010.

Information for prior years is not available.

UAALasa
Covered Percentage of
Payroli Covered Payroll
(©) ((b-a)c)
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
N/A N/A
3,080,534 59.30%
N/A N/A
N/A N/A

61




Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS
OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS PLAN
Required Supplemental Information

April 30, 2015
Annual
Fiscal Required Net
Year Employer Contribution Percentage OPEB
Ending Contributions (ARC) Contributed Obligation
2015 $208,936 $369,158 58.09% $685,775
2014 17,099 173,077 9.88% 535,093
2013 17,099 173,077 9.88% 376,604
2012 5315 78,058 6.81% 219,165
2011 5315 78,809 6.74% 145,452
2010 8,031 78,809 [0.19% 70,778

The Village implemented GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended April 30, 2010.
Information for prior years is not available.
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SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

Village of Chatham, Illinois

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Original Final 2015
Budget Budget Actual
REVENUES
Property tAXES ovieeierienievienieierisenasiemiessissesnsisieissnsisssiissossesnass $1,069,000 $1.069,000 $1,073,195
Replacement taXes.....coveveriereereeecnserinenresreseermresiseserssrenseseses 2,500 2,500 2,744
Road and bridge taxes ... e 51,100 51,100 26,284
Y [ ¥ . < SRR 891,000 891,000 915,887
TNCOME TAXES 1.vriierieriirereerseimmessisserssiassisnnosimiasresiessenssssrarssnssrssions 1,124,700 1,124,700 1,126,248
LOCAl USE LAXES...ccoveciicinrer et niesisseeeriernecninasreeseisessiensenseressons 204,700 204,700 221,456
Telecommunications taX. ... iereerrnevsenierresiesnesesresevecrensersnsns 280,500 280,500 201,318
Video ZAMINEG tAX .ovvvevieierirreeeinnesisreesissronmonnassessscsnsessreneressens 30,000 30,600 46,430
FranchiSe TEES .uuuvvrerrrericeeereeresci ettt e e et entsssmssnsntensssaresns 218,000 218,000 220,727
Business lIEeRSeS .vveivrimriiinicsnisiiisiseisniresssssssscsosssssnsssnenne 20,000 20,000 17,600
Building and zoning fees..........ccoveeeenieneinenicrerciceeiennenerenens 50,000 50,000 67,893
FHIES v iiree et s iasreae s isevestesesseseste st e s s sesrenevessesassessesanssnnnnes 116,350 116,350 93,703
Recreation program fees and contributions........ccnvennrincannnn, 29,500 29,500 42,289
CoIMBLETY TRES ovevviverrrie s iesienier e srisrie e ssrresassesessesessessensssensasrs 13,600 13,600 16,150
Charges fOr SEIVICES....vuierierierieerinesrereseniesnsnresesssiaseesssreserersnsens 45,000 45,000 16,282
AJMInIStration fo€ .....c.vciviviiimieiriniseiseresenissssssisssrrersressississses 297,500 297,500 295,750
TVESIMENT INCOME.....ciii it reesr s tresssentasas 1,900 1,900 2,175
L1 11 OOy U ORI OOTUUYPUTUTPOTPIN 54,500 54,500 34,123
Federal Srants........cooeienicninerinnierissisnnsemsssssisnsssesorerersereses 11,500 11,500 12,784
TOtal FEVENUES...ccvvriscirrirersieeenisnssreisssnrsnreiessssssresessnnes 4,511,350 4,511,350 4,433.038
EXPENDITURES

General Government:
Salaries and OVEITIIME. ... i rerie s ersessisseresteressessessnens 257,000 257,000 244,566
Village officials.....cccrcvecieininicnniierccnresens 54,000 54,000 51,600
Other payroll expenditures ......o.cccivvvivrrrrirrnreeseree s 114,150 114,150 104,839
Travel and training........cc.oceereerenicrerrniecnensesereseesessresvoes 11,500 11,500 6,245
Legal fReS . reenrsssmsreeeresanensasresnessnsanne 58,000 58,000 41,130
Professional SEIVICES....cimimeumminieiisneiieersrereosiessione 108,400 108,400 89,767
Accounting and auditing fees ..o 2,500 2,500 2,500
Building and grounds maintenance .........ceecvvorensieierennens 13,800 13,800 11,328
Vehicle and equipment maintenance.........ceeerinrnienne 6,750 6,750 1,871
Office expendillires. ... iceereerenmieens s s s esisssarsenerense 24,000 27,000 24,431
IT 82 GIS v et see s e s rassrs st e eranssss s es 51,800 42,800 36,308
Genetral INSUIANCE .o s evrsrissessereeisssssestarssaeseresassssses 29,500 32,100 32,009
REfUNUS .. evereirieevsiarieninineras s srsssesavisnressesosasissssissassestensses 2,000 5.400 4.813
Total general ZOVErAMENL.......ccceeecrermesirierimeasaceererenrens 733,400 733.400 651,407

(continued)
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Village of Chatham, Hhnois
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
GENERAIL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original Final 2015
Budget Budget Actual
EXPENDITURES, CONTINUED
Cemetery:
Salaries and OVEIHING. ...ovvevr s e esesesseeeseseerenseresseses $ 24,800 $ 25,800 $ 24,787
Other payroll eXpenditures ........covvvvivieniernerinneseenieesinns 6,600 6,600 6,341
Building and grounds maimtenance .........oveeeerevnsiennne. 17,000 16,000 14431
Total Cemetery. ..o e 48.400 48,400 45,559
Culture and recreation:
Salaries and OVEMEIME...ov v e sae oo ens 246,500 260,500 249,742
Other payroll expenditures ... 91,100 91,100 87,773
Professional SErVICES .o e 500 500 190
Building and grounds maintenance ............cocoviiinierernevenen 82,200 64,700 59,480
Program exXpenditlres .....cueeivereereesmnmneneseserecnnesmversessssenens 31,000 33,000 32,092
A OF JULY covverseeis et era st o essrssneteses s rens 7,000 7,000 7,000
Vehicle and equipment maintenance.........oovecvvereverieciininns 23,300 24,800 22,805
Office eXPendiflres........cvveeericecrvrenicnriers e oo 1,800 1,800 1,518
Equipment purchase.........cecovcrmienvnsinineiensenenssisneenens 15,300 15,300 14,702
Uniforms and Supplies ..o 4,700 4.700 2,108
Total culfure and recreation .........reeeievresinnserenenn. 503,400 503.400 477,410
Public safety:
Salaries and OVerlime ...cvv v ieeriieis e seseesenes 1,394,500 1,403,500 1,337,941
Other payroll expenditures ........ccoveivernierinnn e 474,500 464,500 422,357
Travel and training.......ccoevvvrrineerirercieiis e eneseres 8,700 8,700 7,539
Professional SErVICES. . ..covvviie vt esnscenrae 5,000 5,000 3,298
Building and grounds maintenance .........covevnverrenrnrereninnes 8,700 8,700 6,373
Vehicle and equipment maiitenance..........covevureveirecenns 71,000 53,000 45,003
Office expenditlires... ..o s e 60,900 63,900 55,723
General INSUPANCE ...vvvvvevrieirr v sesee e eennas 43,500 43,500 41,166
EMergency Services .o nisresersessseienins 14,000 26,000 24,417
Equipment purchase.........coocvviiimnccnnnnnn. 14,750 14,750 10,464
Pension contribUtion .......c.ccueeimiercicinnenneieererssimsenees 341,900 341,906 341,102
Uniforms and supplies .......co.ccvrervncncennneeninresinis e 29,500 29,500 18,003
Crime prevention ... - 4.000 3,384
Total public safety........ccco e e 2.466.956 2,466,956 2,316,770
(continued)
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Village of Chatham, Itlinois
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

GENERAL FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015
Original Final 2015
Budget Budget Actual
EXPENIDITURES, CONTINUED
Public works/transportation:
Salaries and OVEItIME . ... ve v ese s ssessesssns $249,000 $ 256,000 $ 233,845
Other payroll eXpendittires ......cceveerenieieonmseessiiersiene 126,800 119,800 115,295
Travel and raining........cecveervvrecrvinseiinieneinrsesrrisissnrcesrsniseens - 1,000 612
Professional ServiCes...cimiiiri e sevesras e 600 600 396
Building and ground maintenance........ceemieeiineneninin 42,250 48,250 44,154
Vehicle and equipment maintenance........cocovvcerereerseeerevernes 68,400 85,400 76,381
Office expendifires. ... ...coivevnnieniicereninerennsienossnsnns 4,750 6,950 5,668
General IMSUTANCE ...ivevevvvvierresiisnerrsriesiaseseereresorsrsessererseres 25,600 21,600 21,497
Equipment pUrChase.......c.oocvvecrveeeriririesrcnereeinreseesesesessessneas 13,250 10,050 6,408
Uniforms and SUPPlEs......cecvveerreeereerivrisecssinisceessssesasseseanes 13,830 13,850 12,908
Street MAINIENANCE . .ouivcieercrie e e ee s ssessssaras 19,700 12,700 7,807
Total public Works/tranSportation............ecceereeeereererienes 564,200 576,200 524971
Debt service:
PHNCIPAL.c.occrreriieirrereerenrennreseeiseernas e essseressseressenssssssenes 57,000 44,000 43,575
TEEIESE. et v it se e a b e srs b bbsbsaneresss e eaeeens 6.200 7,200 7,178
Total debt SEIVICE vt e e 63,200 51,200 50,753
Total eXpenditires........coveeeveeierereerinsierreeresinresseseseseserenes 4,379,556 4,379,556 4,066,870
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES
BEFORE OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)............... 131.794 131,794 366.168
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (UUSES)
Loan ProCeeds.. .o vvreninieiesiesieseniessscasiessessesssessessnssesssassersans 100,000 100,000 230,000
Transfer to Capital Projects ..o, ( 196,000y ( 3260000 { _326,000)
Total Other Financing Sources (USes) c.vevnercrericrenenrennens ( _96.000) ( _226.000) ( __96.000)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. ..o $__ 35794 ($__94,206) 270,168
FUND BALANCE —MAY 1 2014 ...oooriirscstmsisnseniesreenanisianiees 873.398
FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015 ...0oievevienrenenseesinernsinsresserans $1,143.566

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

TIF DISTRICT FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Original Final 2015
Budget Budpget Actual
REVENUES
PrOPEItY tAXES couvceiscerecrciseriaeinrinseesre e e bensee s vsssse s ssnonans $ 542,000 $ 542,000 $ 548,478
INVESIMENt INCOME.....veverirererreeiiierreneeseeetrsvee s ebsreeisensresenesesnes - - 1,303
Total FEVENUES........ceeirieeriien e ssns s 542,000 542,000 549,781
EXPENDITURES
General BOVEINMMENT ...ciivvverrrerierinieninneeissese e ensessesees 600 600 -
Economic development ..........c.vcvveconeeveenrneniannsosineeesseeissrenns 50,000 50,000 49.969
Total eXpenditires........cccerenrvreciirinisenieeser e 50,600 50,600 49.969
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES) w.oviveiicerinieane, 491.400 491.400 499,812
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfer out debt SeIVICE c.o.cvvvvviiieciiii s eee s e ( 1254000 ( 125400y ( 114,173)
‘Transfer out of capital ProjectS.......vvveieereineeeeeresie e veerens ( 1498,000) ( 1,623.000) ( 1.602,934)
Total other financing SOUrCes (USES) ..v.vvvveevcriivsirereesereens ( 1.623.4060) ( 1,748.400) ( 1.717,107)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ...t ($1,132,000)  ($1.257,000) ( 1,217,295)
FUND BALANCE —MAY 1, 2014 ..ot 1,221.335
FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015.....ccovivi e censesisesenens $__ 4,040

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
April 30, 2015

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Budget — The President and Board of Trustees legally enact the budget though passage of an ordinance which is
developed on the modified accrual basis of accounting for the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service
Fund, Capital Projects Fund, and Permanent Fund and the accrual basis of accounting for the Proprietary Funds and
the Fiduciary Funds. Each fund’s appropriated budget is prepared on a detailed line item basis. Revenues are
budgeted by source. Expenditures are budgeted by operational line item which constitutes the legal level of control.
Expenditures may not exceed appropriations. All budget revisions must be approved by the Board of Trustees. The
budget lapses at year end. The Village has adopted an annual budget for all funds. The Village approved a budget
amendment during the fiscal year.
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COMBINING AND INDIVIDUAL FUND
STATEMENTS AND SCHEDULES
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REVENUES
Investment income

EXPENDITURES
Debt service:
Principal.........
Interest............

Viilage of Chatham, Hlinois

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

DPEBT SERVICE FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

..................................................................................................

..................................................................................................

..................................................................................................

Total eXpenditiures. ... coiviniciiniriiniei et et

(DEFICIENCY) EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES

BEFORE OTHER

OTHER FINANCING
Transfer in.............

FINANCING SOURCES ....cooiovreenmreemreeressninisssnerisenssns

SOURCES

..................................................................................................

FUND BALANCE —MAY 1, 2014 ...t ssssserssesssnsens

FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015....coiieiceeer e sassssesasssens

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

TIF District
Final
Budpet

Actual

120,000 120,000
5,400 5.400
125.400 125,400
( 125,400) 125,331
125400 114,173
$ - ( 11,227)
108.635

$_97.408
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REVENUES
Investment income

EXPENDITURES
Constructioft..........

Village of Chatham, Illinois

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND

CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL

CAPITAL PROJECTS FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

..................................................................................................

..................................................................................................

(DEFICIENCY) OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES

OTHER FINANCING
Transfersin...........

........................................................................

SOURCES

..................................................................................................

FUND BALANCE — MAY 1, 2014 ....covvicnnieinninniinnisnisesseessesssesesssesaens

FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015 ......ccoeiiinicniennnniinsiseissiesssssressssosssssanes

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

Capital Projects

Final
Budget Actual
$ 600 $ 458
2,176,265 1,889,055

( 2,175,665)  ( 1,888,597)

1,949,000 1,928,934
($_226,665) 40,337
255231

$_295.568
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Village of Chatham, Hlinois
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL
PERMANENT FUND
For the Year Ended April 30, 2015

Cemetery Trust
Final
Budget Actual
REVENUES
Fees and Service CHAIZES .......ccvceitiertiiniinin s sesss st sessssmsssaseas $ 20,500 $ 21,100
INVESEINEIL INCOMIC...vireiieieicei st iessesrsst s b e b e b e b o e eassrsassanssnesnersennsannes 2,000 1,189
TOAL TEVEIUES ..ot 22,500 22.289
EXPENDITURES
Bank Charge CXPONSE ...t srs s rssn e essn s ensssas e nesraerasssvens 100 53
RETIMIAS ... oot reecscirirssst s bt et et et e s esnsanessnesesssanessansessesnessesssasansessentenssenses 400 388
Total eXpenditires........covvc e s res 500 441
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE ...ttt seseeisessraeiasessessessssesssssansenees $ 22,000 21,848
FUND BALANCE —IMAY 1, 2014 ..o eenisrerinnieniosesserissssssssssssssssssssessessessnsssns 389.074
FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015 et cetrveeeseeesrees e smesessneenases $410,922

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report,
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
ELECTRIC FUND
Aprif 30, 2015 and 2014

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash and cash 8qUIVAIEIIIS.......cvi e et s ses s s bt anens
Restricted aCCOUNLS = CASN ....uviiiieeereeeireii it esesniresaesessessssessseensessassentevassasessasersions
ACCOUNS TECRIVADIES. .1 1vrrrvvrerivrrenrestesirs e tesse s sass e b assresss s sesas s senessastsans et saraatastssranses

......................................................................................................................

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets, Dot being depreciated ... ...
Property and eQUIPIENE .....vuisiiiini s s ies st esssssns e serssssssrasseensnsssssossearasne
Less: accumulated depreciation oo sessasasasos

Total CaPItal BSSELS....cvcvvrecrmerriecrrnisnrms st st

TOTAL ASSETS..

......................................................................................................................

CURRENT LIABILITIES

ACCOUNTS PAYADIE et e e b e s r s e e bt
UNEAINEA FEVEIUIE ..vvviiiisiiisiisrsniessiomsnsssessersnessassssrsssossessssesansassrassassestassisssssstestostasssrssosss
ACCTUC PAYTOILo.iiiicicii st e ettt e s s se e b bt
Accrued compensated absences Payable .......ovoveernineie e s
CUSTOMET dEPOSIES .uovtiniesiiieiisrieirinisiasrertanientersssasras e raesess s sessse bt e s stresensssesssss s s e st sssssans
Accrued INferest PAYAbIE... .t e e

Other payables

......................................................................................................................

Current maturities of long term debt:
G.0. bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) payable v
DEbE CEITHICAIES 1.t 1s1mrereriensrsssreriraseserseressassessssessrassersesessasssasesirssasstastonssasssrastos somssns

LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Net OPEB OBHZALION c..euecereernrcrernerseseties s snsss s st tessessissssssssssssssnsossessassasaesons
G.0. bonds (Alternate Revenue Source) Pavable .. o meinseesesisares s ssnessseeesons
Db CEITITICALES Luvruiisisnissisiiinsss s sensresssssensssessessasta e imastossossensestsasosssssratsatastaststons

NET POSITION

Investment i CAPITAl ASSEES ..o eerccnsresirr s nresi s e bt s
Restricted Tor debt SeIVIC. i s ses s s s

Unrestricted....

......................................................................................................................

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

2015 2014
$ 806638  $ 1,078,622
349,191 148,426
742,516 735,510
358,828 -
426322 456,095
2,683,495 2,418,653
279,734 279,734
18,539,894 18,078,332
( _1.567516)  ( _7.066.544)
11.252.112 11.291.522
13.935,607 13,710,175
52,218 76,136
74,965 24,869
41,832 38,602
136,716 134,754
117,400 116,100
60,617 36,022
8,751 8,215
231,000 234,000
45,000 40,000
21.720 -
790,219 708,698
104,149 88,903
3,340,000 3,571,000
- 45,000

73,256 -
3,517.405 3,704,903
4,307,624 4,413,601
7,541,136 7,401,522
349,191 148,426
1.737.656 1.746.626
$ 9627983  $.9296,574
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Village of Chatham, Iilinois
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
ELECTRIC FUND
For the Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
REVENUES
UUSEE CRAIZES cvvevrereeiceeieicr et n e sas s st bbb ks emsb o st e e e e eeneramnns $9,311,838 $8.616,182
OLHEE INCOME ...ceveeceeireeie e esrerssts e ves et ar et sesontses b stabonsntstssartsessmesentensnen 113,408 143,231
TOLAL TEVEIIUES .e.eveeeseertirerirerstrt it s ssssbs s ss s tv st et abecrenbesssnsansnesssarasenssnssrensonsas 9425246 8.759.413
EXPENSES
EleCtricity PUICHASES.......vcvcierisiereis it reresisss s e esssessntsasss st sssne someenenes 6,307,891 6,276,254
Distribution and CUSIOMET SEIVICE ...t nieriessessseesseesesessessessesasssens 2,120,501 2,131,183
DIEPIECIBtION. ..1ovsiricermriee e e s rae b b st es bt 543.430 520,363
TOMAL GEPBIISES. 1.reurrerrenrreeeristissres s sessssbsaess e ieras s s bentebintassasbessessssenes 8.971.872 8,927,800
OPERATING INCOME (LLIOSS) ...ctrreeecererreieiieeie s ieeesssesstssssnss st ssarossssssrossasse 453,374 { 168,387)
NONOPERATING INCOME (EXPENSE)
INVESIMENT INCOIME........c.eeieereee ittt re et er e steassssesesassansneseresseeresessessentenne 2,732 3,497
GITANE TACOIMNE «..ovveveveueseresrereetaraseersersntesisarrarerssrsnriestasestasssssesensontesssssessessnsasassessensenes - 55,529
HITEIESE EXPOIISE .eveirererreeceerreniesesiestssessearsessesssaeseasseetsssssasrassestostsronsseresastastsnsaens ( _124,697) ( _156.673)
Total NONOPEIating (EXPOINSE) .vvveererierieriarsinieresiersssssesssressasirssssssessrassesrossrnre ( _121.965) ( _ 97.647D
CHANGE IN NET POSITION.....i it iirsirsiessiesseiesiosisrssesessssisessssssssestesssssssasans 331,409 { 266,034)
FUND BALANCE — BEGINNING ...oocooviieremeirieee e esrerseesstosestssssessssssssssessssssns 9,296,574 9,562,608
FUND BALANCE —ENDING .....coooieviesteeee st ressererener et esessasasssesesessssssassassesses $9,627,983 $9.296,574

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Village of Chatham, Tllinois
COMPARATIVE BALANCE SHEET
TIF DISTRICT
April 30,2015 and 2014

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents — reStricted ..o sseseersessssereeens
TAXES TECEIVADIC ...vvvcvctiiererrs s ses et ss ettt ees s emsesesssres s s s s s s aete

TOTAL ASSETS ...ttt iesssssssssesessssorssessesss s e ssseesesaenns

LIABILITIES
ACCOUNES PAYADIC. ..v..cvuviiriiriisin s s sss s ess s st neeeren

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Unavailable revenue — Property tAXES .......c.overeieiiesrenserrereeseesereeressesessssssssssossans

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES......coo.......

FUND BALANCES
Restricted for economic development. ... eesisessessseseeseesssenss

TOTAL LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
AND FUND BALANCES ...ttt ssserssssssssssssssssssssetsssessessossesssores

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

2015 2014
$ 30445 $1,222,446
575.575 552,117
$_606,020 $1,774,563
$ 26405 $ 1111
575,575 552.117
601.980 553,228
4,040 1.221.335
$_606,020 $1,774,563
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Village of Chatham, [llinois
COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
TIF DISTRICT
For the Years Ended April 30, 2015 and 2014

2015 2014
REVENUES
PrOPOITY TAXES c1ecvriiercrnrericere s icrtserer e rsess e b s s sae et e s earae st ses st eessesasenstenranas $ 548,478 $ 526,300
INVESMEINT INCOIMIC, 1ot e vascrerireriaierisseneieesisietisnstasserestebasborssrssermsntensnsnssassrssesssernens 1,303 1,886
TOtAl TEVENUES .c.ev e et rce vt ens et ressesar et e sssarssssssensrssnssensnaes 549,781 528.186
EXPENDITURES
Current operations:
General GOVEINIMEIH.........cooiiirteeercees e s e res sesns s snssnssans - 3,276
Economic development ... e 49,969 45,429
Total eXpenditures.....c.ccvereeieineiee e e sbeaan 49,969 48,705
EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENDITURES BEFORE
OTHER FINANCING (USES)..ciiriinritreerennenienisssisrasnmserossnsssrssssiasses srasssaes 499,812 479,481
OTHER FINANCING (USES)
Transfer out for capital projects......vin ( 1,602,934) -
Transfer out for debt SErVICE.......covver s e seenes ( _114,173) ( _266.847)
Total other financing SOUrCES (USES) ...evrcorcererieirmnieriieserininnircsseeseressesesassesiens ( L7117.107)  ( _266.847)
NET CHANGE IN FUND BALANCE. .....ccoioimiricisiinnserisesnrasiessssssesserssssssssssens ( 1,217,295) 212,634
FUND BALANCE —~MAY 1, 2014 (it sssenes 1,221,335 © 1,008,701
FUND BALANCE — APRIL 30, 2015 ..o ssesassees §__ 4,040 $1,221,335

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Village of Chatham, linois
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES
April 30,2015

Tax Increment Financing
General Obligation

General Obligation
(Alternative Revenue Source) Bonds Total Debt
Bonds, Series 2009 Series 2001 Service
Principal Interest Principal Interest Requirements
2015 -2016 $ 125,000 § 1,875 $ 35,000 $ 3,550 $ 165,425
2016 -2017 - - 36,000 1.800 37.800
$..125.000 $ 1,875 $_ 71,000 $ 5,350 $_203.225

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.

78




Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF DEBT SERVICE REQUIREMENTS
BUSINESS-TYPE ACTIVITIES
April 30, 2015

Electric
General Obligation Electric Fund
(Alternative Revenue Source) Debt Certificates Total Debt
Bonds, Series 2014 of 2010 Service
Pringcipal Interest Principal Interest Requirements

20152016 $ 231,000 $ 119,547 $ 45,000 $ 844 $ 396,391
2016 -2017 235,000 112,501 - - 347,501
2017-2018 247,000 105,287 - - 352,287
2018-2019 260,000 97,555 - - 357,555
2019 - 2020 263,000 89,391 - - 352,391
20202021 273,000 81,081 - - 354,081
2021 -2022 279,000 72,126 - - 351,126
2022 - 2023 295,000 62,807 - - 357,807
2023 - 2024 306,000 52,719 - - 358,719
2024 -2025 314,000 42,192 - - 356,192
2025 -2026 321,000 31,234 - - 352,234
2026 — 2027 336,000 19,870 - - 355,870
2027 2028 106,000 7,976 - - 113,976
2028 - 2029 105,000 3,969 - - 108,969

$3.571,000 $_898,.255 $_ 45,000 $ 844 $4.515,099

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.




Village of Chatharm, Hlinois

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS
April 30, 2015
Fair Interest
Cost Value Rate Mafurity
Police Penston Fund
Charles Schwab Account:
Mutual Funds:
Equity Funds:
Baron Growth FUnd .......coveeevvnvvsinsiscssesieeeeernens $ 182,500 $ 191,062
Champlain Smal Company 257,500 263,839
Harbor International..............ooeeevvevnen 257,500 265,723
Harding Loevner Inst....... 60,000 62,378
Longleaf Partness Fund.... 346,500 328,481
Longleaf Partners Small....... 336,000 335,116
Mainstay Large Cap....ionirsenoncssssmenes 269,000 277,650
Oakpark Fund ............... 331,500 344,203
Primecap Odyssey GrOWEH ....ccoveveeenreneereeorensseneennns 249,000 274,892
Tweedy Browne Global....... 267,500 274,999
TFotal Equity Funds 2,557,000 2.618,343
Fixed Income:
US Treasuries:
INFL INAEX cvrurreerciinisrsirerniisisinteseesecesrssrs s 102,921 105,374 0.0625% 01/15/2014
56,374 58,920 2.22% 01/17/2023
49,963 50,151 233% 06/30/2020
46,860 48,973 2.13% 121372022
101,571 104,972 0.00% 12/27/2018
254,768 263,016
Corporate Bonds:
ADPPIEINC.. et rerernsissnsrsensisaeressesseseerasssssrsssesses 50,383 51,891 2.85% 05/06/2021
Berkshire Hathaway 51,068 52,404 2.90% 10/1572020
Coca-Cola Company 45,236 46,840 3.20% 11/01/2023
IBM COIP .ot ssiennrese s snssssssans 59,725 60,213 7.625% 10/15/2018
IBM Cotp..vevrevcanennans 63,000 64,155 8.375% 1170172019
Wal-Mart Stores........ 91,640 90,672 6.750% 10/15/2023
Wal-Mart Stores........ 103.688 106,961 3.250% 10/25/2020
Total Corporate Bonds 464,740 473,136
Municipal Bonds:
DuPage ETC IL ..o ssenessens 82.044 83.832 4875% 01/01/2019
Mortgage Pools:
GNMA Pool AE4614 ..., 117,950 121,930 3.500% 05/15/2043
GNMA Pool ALS347 .....ooeennenneenesnnsinsssisissinns 102,363 102,762 3.000% 03/15/2045
Total Mortgage PoolS .....cceecervvevevvessesnisenns 220313 224,692
CMO & Asset Backed Securities:
Government Nation ..., 51.865 51,533 3.500% 07/02/2036
Certificate of Deposit:
Synchrony Bank 99,515 100,381 2.80% 09/13/2021
Synchrony Bank 99,640 100.751 2.05% 06/20/2019
Total Certificate of Deposit 199.155 201,132

Total Charles Schwab.......cccvieoi e 3,932,810 4,021,058




Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENTS

April 30, 2015
Fair
Cost Value

United Community Bank:

Certificate 0f DEPOSIL .o $ 138.773 $ 138773

- Carrolton Bank:

Certificate 0T Deposil....ccvnviierisvevrensienses, 115,583 115,583
Marine Bank: .

Certificate of Deposit ... 113,754 113,754

Certificate 0f DepOSit....uvvivsmssimirsmnsnne. 132,851 132,851

Certificate of Deposit ........ 54447 54.447

Total Marine Bank 301.052 301,052

Bank of Springfield:

Certificate of Deposit ..., 112,116 112,116
First Bankers Trust:

Certificate of Deposit. i, 101.296 101,296
Bank & Trust;

Centificate of Deposit ..., 103,065 103,065

Certificate of Deposit ... 213,537 213,537

Certificate of Deposit ..., 107,770 107,770

Certificate of Deposit 259.207 259.2067

Total Bank & TIUSE....vvvveemnmnrinmnsiaresen 683,579 683,579

Total Fiduciary FUndS........cooc.eevevevieeiesiosevesrssrsssssssssssnssons $5,385,209 $5.473,457

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report,

Interest
Rate

2.50%

3.06%

2.88%
2.14%
2.14%

0.81%

1.00%

1.10%
1.75%
2.00%
1.45%

Maturity
09/25/2015

06/11/2015

08/01/2015
03/08/2016
01/31/2016

12/30/2015

12/04/2015

08/27/2015
08/27/2015
08/16/2016
10/30/2017
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Village of Chatham, Illinois
SCHEDULE OF ELECTRIC RATES CHARGED
April 30, 2015

The Electric System served 5,433 customers as of April 30, 2015. The Village provided 75,891,179.96 kilowatt hours to its
customers during fiscal year 2015. The electric rates charged by the Village are as follows:

Standard Residential Service Rates
(1) Rate: $0.106 net per kwh
Facility Charge $10.80

Senior Citizen Residential and Village Park Service Rate
(1) Rate: $0.0955 net per kwh

Facility Charge $10.80

Governmental Service

(1) Rate: $0.0955/kwh

(2) Demand Charge: $5.8568/multiplier/demand unit (demand will be the
highest average kilowatt demand measured in any 15 minute period during
the month)

(3) Facility charge $23.22

General Service — Commercial Without Demand

(D) Rate: $0.1250/kwh

(2) Facility Charge — Commercial, institutional, and non-residential or for
three phase, residential, non-residential, institutional, and commercial use
taken through a single meter at the utility standard secondary voltage
without Demand metering,
a) $10.80 per month single phase
b) $23.22 per month three phase

General Service — Commercial With Demand

(1) Rate: $0.0990/kwh

(2) Demand Charge: $5.8568/multiplier/demand unit (demand will be the
highest average kilowatt demand measured in any 15 minute period during
the month)

(3) Facility Charge - Commercial, institutional, and non-residential or for
three phase, residential, non-residential, institutional, and commercial use
taken through a single meter at the utility standard secondary voltage
without Demand metering.

a} $10.80 per month single phase
b) $23.22 per month three phase

Industrial Service
(1} Rate
a) $0.0866/kwh
b) $7.799/multiplier/demand unit (demand will be the highest average
kilowatt demand measured inn any 15 minute period during the
month, minimum of 70kw. The Village may determine the actual
demand either by permanently installed instruments or by tests
(2) Facility Charge
a) $18.58 per month single phase
b) $46.44 per month three phase
(3) Security Lighting Rate: $7.88 per month




Estes, Bridgewater & Ogden

MEMBERS
LORI K. MILOSEVICH, C.PA., CFE. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF
TERRI L. PHELPS, C.P.A. CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
RICHARD W. OGDEN, C.PA. 901 South Second Streat ILLINOIS CPA SOCIETY
RICHARD L. GRATFTON, C.P.A. Sprmgileld, Hlinois 62704 _
ROY A. BALLINGER, C.P.A., M.B.A. 217/528-8473 TEXAS 30CIETY OF CERTIFIED
MICHATRL A. FAFOGLIA, C.P.A. Fax 217/528-8506 PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANT’S REPORT ON
COMPLIANCE WITH STATE OF ILLINOIS
PUBLIC ACT 85-1142

To the President
and Board of Trustees
Village of Chatham, Illinois

We have examined management’s assertion that the Village of Chatham, Illinois, complied with the
provisions of subsection (g) of Section 11-74.4-3 of the Illinois Tax Increment Redevelopment Allocation Act
(Illinois Public Act 85-1142) during the year ended April 30, 2015. As discussed in that represeniation letter,
management is responsible for the Village of Chatham, Illinois® compliance with those requirements. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assertion about the Village’s compliance based on
our examination.

Our examination was made in accordance with the standards established by the American Institute of Public
Accountants and, accordingly, included examining, on a test basis, evidence about the Village of Chatham,
Ilinois’ compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our examination provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our examination does not provide a legal determination on the Village of Chatham, [llinois” compliance with
statutory requirements.

In our opinion, management’s assertion that the Village of Chatham, Illinois, complied with the
aforementioned requirements for the year ended April 30, 2015, is fairly stated in all material respects.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Village Board, management and the Illinois

Department of Revenue, Illinois State Comptroller’s office and the Joint Review Board and should not be
used by anyone other than these specified parties.

WMWWW?W

Certified Public Accountants
Springfield, lllinois

October 23, 2015
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Village of Chatham, Illinois

SCHEDULE OF ASSESSED VALUATIONS, RATES,

EXTENSIONS AND COLLECTIONS
Tax Years 2014, 2013, and 2012

2014 2013 2012
ASSESSED VALUATTION....ccinnnnnnimniammmmnsmnesnamesrsses $239,154,938 $226,206,007 $216,782,554
TAX RATES
GENEIAL ovviriiriirevirreeti ettt ste s reetereess s renr s e re e esereee b ns 0.2270 0.2245 0.2379
POLICE PENSION 1.veevieicerrerr e riesreereeeeassassasserresseseesssesesnseersenns 0.1367 0.1511 0.1336
LIMLRLE vt ssresressbse s sbesisr e s ssve et sressnesrne s 0.0487 0.0480 0.0489
Police Protection.....cocveviiiisieivriineessicesssceeseessses e 0.0574 0.0518 0.0553
TOAL vttt b e sr e r e resberrs b 0.4698 0.4754 04757
EXTENSIONS
GEIETAL...vveviceceecriecre et sr e ere b bt ersst s enr s $ 542,882 § 507,832 $ 515,726
POlICE PENSION 1o vveivriiiiisiressasrenssssesssniessasssrassesseses et 326,925 341,797 289,621
| 0 2 LU R 116,468 108,579 106,007
Police Protection .....ccvviivesivesreessrensnncssennsrserenseennee vt 137,275 117,175 119,881
07 7 U $_ 1123550 $_ 1075383 $_ 1,031,235
COLLECTIONS ‘
General (included LM.R.F, and Police Protection)............. $ 732,093 § 740,665
POCE PEISION . eveetirerecrie s ieeenreseresesseeseessesssessesssessssesessses 341,102 289.251

Village share of road and bridge taxes

Note: The Village does not levy for TIF District property tax collections.

$__1,073,195

$__1.029916

$ 26,284

$___ 49588

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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Village of Chatham, Ilinois
SCHEDULE OF LEGAL DEBT MARGIN

Tax Year 2014
ASSESSED VALUATION — 2014 LEVY wvveisnnmssse sereensarseenasasr s asrensanes $239,154,938
STATUTORY DEBT LIMITATION (8.625% OF VALUATION)...ccccvnveeeresssssnrsnsssersnnans $ 20,627,113
‘Total Debt:
General obligation DONAS....ccveverrrririiriiicrreeee e rer s 3 71,000
Electtic debt CerlifiCates....ovmmmriiiiiiieeeieresisesesssionnssssesseresrens 45,000
Tax increment financing general obligation
(alternative revenue source) bonds..........ccvevecreneniisnieineenn. 125,000
Electric general obligation (alternative
FEVENUE SOUICE) DONAS oo scesrsecn e sae e 3,571,000
3,812,000
Less debt paid from other SOUICES.......vvvrevermrerrenrinicrnsseeresererenns ( _3.741.000) ( 71.,000)
LEGAL DEBT MARGIN .....vovvnrirmsnsrimmsmsmsssssissessossssssssonssscaens $_20,556,113

See accompanying Independent Auditor’s Report.
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